REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS CITY OF TEMPE

REQlTEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS: 08-051 RFQ ISSUE DATE: 09/11/2007
Commodity Code(s): 914-53, 914-84, 914-55,
914-58, 914-61, 914-50,

PROCUREMENT DESCRIPTION: Housing Rehabilitation Contractors 914-27, 914-30, 914-38
914-47, 914-85, 914-64,
914-68, 914-73, 914-79,
RFQ DUE DATE/TIME: Tuesday, October 16, 2007, 3:00 P.M. 914-80, 914-83
Local Time

Late RFQs will not be considered.
REOQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION ESPONSE MUST BE DELIVERED TO CITY P REMENT OFFICE

Mailing Address: PO Box 5002, Tempe, AZ 85280
Street Address: 20 E. Sixth Street (2™ Floor), Tempe, AZ 85281

PRE-QUALIFICATIONS CONFERENCE: N/A
DEADLINE FOR INQUIRIES: Friday, October5, 2007, 5:00 P.M., Local Time

Sealed RFQ submittals must be received and in the actua! possession of the City Procurement Office on or
hefore the exact RFQ Due DatefTime indicated above. RFQ responses will be opened and each offeror’s
name will be publicly read. Late RFQs will not be considered.

RFQ responses must be submitted by a sealed envelopefpackage with the Request For Qualiﬁcaﬁch’s
number, offeror’s name and address clearly indicated on the envelope/package.

RFQ responses must be completed in ink or typewritten and a completed RFQ response returned to the City
Procurement Office by the RFQ Due Date/Time indicated above. The “Vendor's RFQ Offer” (form 201-B
RFQ) must be completed and signed in ink. Responses by electronic transmission, telegraph, mailgram or
facsimile will not be considered.

RFQ offeror's are asked o immediately and carefully read the entire Request For Qualifications and not later
than 10 days before the RFQ Due Date/Time, address any questions Or clarifications to the Procurement
Officer identified below:

Lisa Goodman , CPPB  E-mail: Lisa_goodman@tempe.gov Phone No:  480-350-8533
Procurement Officer

RFQ evaluation and award selection recommendations are publicly nosted to the City Procurement Office
web page (www.temge.gov[gurchasing) and at the Procurement Office reception counter.

Submit one- (1) original signed and completed RFQ response for evaluation purposes. For this specific RFQ,
5 additional RFQ response copies are also to be submitted for evaluation purposes. A late, unsigned
and/or materially incomplete RFQ response will be considered non-responsive and rejected.

yE[4
Jerry Hart
Financial Services Manager

Form 201-A (RFQ)
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Vendor’s RFQ Offer

It is REQUIRED that Request for Quafifications Offeror COMPLETE, SIGN and SUBMIT the original of this form to
the City Procurement Office with the RFQ response offer. An unsigned “Vendor's RFQ Offer”, late response
and/or a materially incomplete response wiil be considered non-responsive and rejected.

RFQ offeror is to type or legibly write in ink all information required below.

RFQ Offeror’s Company Name QM&Z\(J&W gfd:'ziﬁid o= e | AEK\J%T"
Company Mailing Address _ 378/ £, MA/ srovl AVE/Z'T/ ?%X.j 4 Z 55 ‘)/ o

Company Street Address - S@AME

RFQ! Offeror’s Company Tax Information:
Arizona Transaction Privilege (Sales) Tax No. & ‘7 -5 %’ié 05 " E or

Arizona Use Tax No.

Federal 1.D. No. ST -070 2027

City & State Where Sales Tax is Paid ,}t‘?ﬂ p&- , Az

RFQ Offeror Contact JDHQ W@ Al Title é‘élﬂff’ TMA?‘EI&
Contact’s Phone No. 202 -39~ p35" 4 E-mail Address J b Méﬁf}\/@ @wMti

THIS REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS IS OFFERED BY

Authorized RFQ Offeror (Type or Print in ink) \;ﬁMEﬁ é . @ BAHALA,
RFQ Offeror's Title (Type of Print in ink) 'EEH JL’—H 1 ANJA? cE

Date /2/44/07

DFAUTHORIZED RFQ OFFEROR (Must Sign in Ink)

¢kndwledges acceptance of all terms and conditions contained herein and
ently developed without consultation with any other offeror or potential
s form with RFQ offer will result in a non-responsive RFQ.

10/¢ /&{7

Sigiature of Axthorized RFQ Offeror Date

Form 201-B (RFQ)
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INSTRUCTIONS TO RFQ OFFERORS

Please note that these Instructions are to be read and followed by any RFQ offeror and/or contracted vendor
and that failure to follow these Instructions may result in rejection of an RFQ offer for non-responsiveness or
cancellation of contract if already awarded.

1. Preparation of RFQ Response: It is the offeror’s responsibility to examine this entire Request For
Qualifications document immediately upon its receipt and to seek clarification of any item or requirement
that may not be clear and to check all RFQ responses for completeness and accuracy before submitting a
response. Concerns about any obvious errors, points of confusion and/or possible improprieties in this
Request for Qualifications that are apparent before the RFQ opening date are to be filed with the City
Procurement Office prior to the scheduled RFQ opening date. Negligence in preparing a RFQ response
confers no right of withdrawal after RFQ due date and time.

The City will not reimburse the cost of developing, presenting or providing any RFQ response to this
Request For Proposals.

2. Late, Unsigned and/or Incomplete RFQ Response: A late, unsigned and/or materially incomplete
RFQ response will be considered non-responsive and rejected. The City will not accept a signed letter by
RFQ offeror in lieu of a signed "Vendor's RFQ Offer”, form 201-B (RFP) as provided in this Request for
Qualifications.

3. Inquiries: Questions regarding this Request for Qualifications are 1o be directed only to the City
Procurement Officer identified on the cover page of this document, form 201-A (RFP); unless another City
contact is specifically named in this Request for Qualifications. Quiestions should be submitted in writing,
when time permits. When sending correspondence related to. this Request for Qualifications, identify within
the letter, the appropriate Request for Qualifications’ number, page and paragraph at issue. However
offeror (vendor) must not place the Request for Qualifications’ number on the outside of an envelope
containing questions, since the envelope may be identified as a sealed RFQ response and not opened until
the official RFQ opening date and time. Inquiries and questions should be asked of the City Procurement
Office not later than 10 days before RFQ opening and those received within 10 days of RFQ opening may
not be answered.

4. RFQ Conference: If a RFQ Conference is scheduled, it is the offeror’s responsibility to attend the
conference, ask questions, seek clarifications and identify any points of confusion or requirements at issue.

5. Withdrawal of RFQ: At any time before the specified RFQ opening date and time, an offeror may
withdraw their RFQ. Offeror must present identification and documentation to indicate their authority to
withdraw a RFQ response.

6. RFQ_ Addendum(s): Receipt and acceptance of a Request for Qualifications' Addendum is to be
acknowledged by signing and returning the document either with the RFQ response or by separate
envelope prior to RFQ opening date and time. Failure to sign and return an addendum prior to RFQ
opening time and date may make the RFQ offer non-responsive to that portion of the Request for
Qualifications as materially affected by the respective addendum.
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7. Payment: For a single requirement purchase, the City will make every effort to make payment within 30
calendar days from receipt of acceptable products, materials and/or services and receipt of correct invoice.
For ongoing term contract purchases, the City will make every effort to make payment within 30 calendar
days from receipt of monthly statement.

8. Discounts: Payment discounts will be computed from the date of receiving acceptable products, materials
and/or services or correct invoice, whichever is later to the date payment is mailed.

9. Compliance with City Solicitation Requirements and Award of Contract: Unless the offeror states
otherwise or unless it states otherwise in this Request for Qualifications, the City reserves the right to
award by individual line item, by group of items, or as a total, whichever is most advantageous to the City.
The City expressly reserves the right to waive any immaterial defect or informality, or reject any or all
RFQs, or portions thereof, or reissue this Request for Qualifications.

A RFQ response is an offer to contract with the City based on the terms, conditions and specifications
contained in this Request for Qualifications. An offeror does not become a contractor unless they receive a
formal contract award from the City Procurement Office. Unless this Request for Qualifications includes a
separate contract document or requires the offeror to submit a contract for review, a contract is formed
when the City Procurement Office provides a written notice of award or 2 purchase order to the successful
offeror. RFQ offers that take exception to the terms, conditions, specifications and/or other requirements
stated within this Request for Qualifications will cause the RFQ offer to be considered as non-responsive.
Exceptions will be evaluated on an individual basis to determine their compliance with the purpose and
intent of the terms and conditions stated within this solicitation. The City shall be the sole judge as to
whether an exception complies with the general purpose and intent of any term, condition and/or
specification stated within this solicitation document.

10. Taxes: Propose all materials (equipment/products) F.0.B. Tempe, prepaid. Unless specifically requested in
this Request for Qualifications, do not include any Sales, Use or Federal Excise Tax in your RFQ pricing.
The City is exempt from payment of Federal Excise Tax. For RFQ evaluation, Transaction (Sales) Privilege
Tax paid (returned) to the City is considered a pass-through cost, calculated as zero (0) expense, For
information on City of Tempe Privilege (Sales) Tax, please contact the City's Tax and License Office at
(480) 350-2955 or visit their web site at www.tempe.gov/salestax.

11. Payment By City Procurement Card: The City Procurement Office {only) may wish to make payment
through the use of a City Procurement Card. It is requested that each offeror indicate on the Price Sheet
(pricing section) of this Request for Qualifications, their willingness to accept City Procurement Card-
payments. The inability to accept payment by City Procurement Card will not disqualify a RFQ response.

12. RFQ Results: Offerors are invited to attend the scheduled RFQ opening at which the name of each offeror
will be publicly read (not prices). After award of RFQ, an appointment may be made with the City
Procurement Officer (identified on the cover page of this Reguest for Qualifications) and the RFQ
documents may be reviewed with the Procurement Officer. Formal award recommendations will be placed
on the Procurement Office web page (www.tempe.gov/purchasing) and posted at the front counter of the
Procurement Office at the same time the award recommendation is forwarded for City Council review.
Parties interested in the outcome of a RFQ may check the City Procurement Office web page or check for
posted awards at the Procurement Office front counter.
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13.

14,

15,

16.

Protests: Any actual or prospective offeror who is aggrieved in conjunction with this Request for
Qualifications or award of a contract may protest to the City Procurement Office (City Procurement Officer
contact). A protest based upon alleged improprieties in this Request for Qualifications that are apparent
before the RFQ opening shall be filed before RFQ opening. At least five (5) days before award of a
contract, the City Procurement Office will post award recommendations on its web page (ing) and at the
Procurement Office front counter for public review. A protest concerning an award recommendation must
be filed within 10 calendar days after the protester knows or should have known the facts and
circumstances upon which the protest is based. A protest shall be in writing and include the protester’s
name, address and phone number, identification of the solicitation or contract being protested, a detailed
statement of the legal and factual grounds of the protest, including copies of relevant documents, and
indication as to the form of relief requested. Protest is to be on the protester's company letterhead and
signed.

Regquest for Taxpayer I.D. Number and Certification, IRS W-9 Form: An attached IRS W-9 form
serves as the last page of this Request for Qualifications and is to be completed by RFQ offeror and
submitted with the RFQ response. Prior to any contract award, this IRS W-9 form must be completed and
submitted to the City Procurement Office.

Compliance of RFQ Offeror/Contractor Forms: Any forms (for example, separate contract,
maintenance agreement, training agreement) intended by the RFQ offeror and/or contractor o be utilized
in relationship to any resulting contract must be submitted with RFQ offer. RFQ offeror and/or contractor
forms that take exception to any of the terms, conditions, specifications and/or other requirements stated
within this Request for Qualifications may cause the RFQ response to be considered as non-responsive and
rejected from consideration or a contract award to be void. Absolutely no RFQ offeror/contractor form will
be considered unless submitted with RFQ response and approved by the City Procurement Office. No City
department is authorized to sign any RFQ offeror and/or contracted vendor form(s) in relationship to this
Request for Qualifications and/or subsequent contract without the City Procurement Office first reviewing
the document for compliance with the City's soficitation and stamping/initialing the document as being in
compliance.

RFQ, Offer and Contract: RFQ offers that take exception to Special Terms & Conditions stated within
this Request for Qualifications may cause the RFQ response to be considered as non-responsive. As set
forth in this Special Terms and Conditions section, “vendor” means a person or firm in the business of selling
or otherwise providing products, materials or services and “RFQ offeror” means a vendor making a RFQ offer
in response to a Request For Qualifications. “Contractor” means any person or firm who has a contract with
the City. A successful “"RFQ offeror” who is awarded a contract with the City becomes a “contractor”.

Any language in RFQ offers that takes exception or provides different or conflicting terms, conditions,
obligations, specifications, and/or requirements then those contained in the City's Standard Terms and
Conditions or Special Terms and Conditions are deemed rejected by the City and are not included in the
contract unless expressly agreed to in writing by the City of Tempe.
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STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS

Please note that these Standard Terms & Conditions are to be read and complied with by RFQ offeror and/or
contracted vendor and that failure to follow these requirements may result in rejection of a RFQ response for
non-responsiveness or canceliation of any awarded contract.

1. Certification: By signing the “Vendor's RFQ Offer”, form 201-B (RFQ), the offeror certifies:

A The submission of the RFQ offer response did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive
practices.
B. The vendor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment in violation

of Federal and Arizona State law and the vendor shall comply with the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA). Suppliers of products and services to the City of Tempe shall operate as
an equal opportunity employer and shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, color, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, or
because he or she has a physical or mental disability or because he or she is a disabled veteran
or a veteran of the Vietham era, including, without limitation, with respect to employment,
upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination,
rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training inciuding apprenticeship.

The City Procurement Office is committed to fair and equal procurement opportunities for all
firms wishing to do business with the City and encourages the participation of small and
disadvantaged businesses in all RFQs and contracting activities conducted by the City.

C. The vendor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter any
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. Failure to sign the “Vendor's
RFQ Offer” or signing it with a false statement shall void the submitted RFQ offer and/or any
resulting contract. In addition, the vendor may be debarred from future RFQ and bidding
participation with the City and may be subject to such actions as permitted by law.

D. The vendor agrees to promote and offer to the City only those materials and/or services as
stated and allowed by this Request for Qualifications and resuftant contract award. Violation of
this condition will be grounds for contract termination by the City.

2. Gratuities: The City may, by written notice to the contractor, cancel any resultant contract, if it is
found that gratuities in any form were offered or given by the contractor or agent or representative of
the contractor, to any employee of the City or member of a City evaluation committee with a view
toward securing an order, securing favorable treatment with respect to awarding, amending or making
of any determinations with respect to performing such order. In event the contract is canceled by the
City pursuant to this provision, the City shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies,
to recover or withhold from contractor the amount of gratuity.

3. Applicable Law: This contract shall be governed by, and the City and contractor shall have all
remedies afforded each by the Uniform Commercial Code, as adopted in the State of Arizona, except as
otherwise provided in this Request for Qualifications and resultant contract or in statutes or ordinances
pertaining specifically to the City. This contract shall be governed by State of Arizona law and suits
pertaining to this contract may only be brought in courts located in Maricopa County, Arizona.
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10.

11,

Dispute Resolution: This contract is subject to arbitration to the extent required by law. If
arbitration is not required by law, the City and the contractor will meet and/or consuit with each other
in good faith to resoive any disputes arising out of the contract. If good faith efforts fail, then the City
and contractor may attempt to resolve any disputes through mediation. If mediation is utilized, the
City and contractor mutually will agree upon a mediator whose fees will be shared equally by the City
and contractor.

Contract Formation: This contract shall consist of this Request for Qualifications document and the
RFQ offer response submitted by the vendor, as may be found responsive and approved by the City. In
the event of a conflict in language between the two documents, the provisions of the City's Request for
Qualifications shall govern. The City’s Request for Qualifications shall govern in all other matters not
affected by a written contract. All previous contracts between the offeror and the City are not
applicable to this contract or other resultant contracts. Any contracted vendor documents that conflict
with the language and requirements of the City's solicitation are not acceptable and void the contract.

Availability of Funds for the Next Fiscal Year: The City's obligation for performance of this contract
is contingent upon the availability of funds from which payment for contract purposes can be made. No
legal liability on the part of the City for any payment may arise for performance under this contract
beyond the current fiscal year until funds are made available for performance of this contract.

Contract Modifications: This contract may only be modified by a written Contract Modification
issued by the City Procurement Office and counter-signed by the contractor.

Provisions By Law: Each and every provision of law and any clause required by law to be in this
contract will be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through mistake or
otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the application of
gither party the contract will forthwith be physically amended to make such insertion or correction.

Severability: The provisions of this contract are severable to the extent that any provision or
application held to be invalid shall not affect any other provision or application of the contract which
may remain in effect without the invalid provision or application to the extent that the material
provisions of this RFP and contract are not materially vitiated.

Relationship of Parties: It is clearly understood that each party to this contract will act in its
individual capacity and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venturer, or associate of the other
party. An employee or agent of one party shali not be an employee or agent of the other party for any
purpose whatsoever.

Interpretation of Parol Evidence: This contract is intended as a final expression of the agreement
between the parties and as a complete and exclusive statement of the contract, unless the signing of a
subsequent contract is specifically called for in this Request for Qualifications. No course of prior
dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade shall be relevant to supplement or explain any
term used in the contract. Acceptance or acquiescence in a course of performance rendered under this
contract shall not be relevant to determine the meaning of the contract, even though the accepting or
acquiescing party has knowledge of the nature of the performance and opportunity to object.
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12.  Contract Assignment: No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned by contractor and no
delegation of any duty of contractor shall be made without prior written permission of the City
Procurement Office.

13. Rights and Remedies: No provisions of this Request for Qualifications document or in the vendor's
RFQ response offer shall be construed, expressly or by implication, as a waiver by the City of any
existing or future right and/or remedy available by law in the event of any claim of default or breach of
contract. The fallure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any term or condition of the
contract or to exercise or delay the exercise of any right or remedy provided in the contract, or by law,
shall not release the contractor from any responsibilities or obligations imposed by the contract or by
law, and shall not be deemed a waiver of any right of the City to insist upon the strict performance of
the contract.

14. Overcharges By Antitrust Violations: The City maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges
resuiting from antitrust violations are borne by the City. Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the
contractor hereby assigns to the City any and all claims for such overcharges as the goods and/or
services used fulfill the contract.

15. Force Majeure: Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other nor
deemed in default under the contract if and to the extent that such party’s performance of the contract
is prevented by reason of force majeure. Force majeure means an occurrence that is beyond the
control of the party affected and occurs without its fault or negligence. Without limiting the foregoing,
force majeure includes acts of God, acts of the public enemy, war, riots, mobilization, labor disputes,
civil disorders, fire, floods, lockouts, injunctions, failures or refusal to act by government authority, and
other similar occurrences beyond the control of the party declaring force majeure which such party is
unable to prevent by exercising reasonable diligence.

Force majeure shall not include the following occurrences:

A. Late delivery of equipment or materials caused by congestion at a manufacturer’'s plant or
elsewhere, an oversold condition of the market, inefficiencies, or similar occurrences.

B. Late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises from a force majeure occurrence in
accordance with this force majeure clause.

Any delay or failure in performance by either party shall not constitute default hereunder or give rise to
any claim for damages or loss of anticipated profits if, and to the extent that such delay or failure is
caused by force majeure.

If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by force majeure, then the delayed
party shall notify the other party in writing of such delay within forty-eight (48) hours of the
commencement thereof and shall specify the causes of such delay in the notice. Such notice shall be
hand delivered or sent via Certified Mail - Return Receipt Requested and shall make a specific reference
to this clause, thereby invoking its provisions. The delayed party shall cause such delay to cease as
soon as practicable and shall notify the other party in writing by hand delivery or Certified Mail - Return
Receipt Requested when it has done so. The time of completion shall be extended by contract
modification for a period of time equal to the time that the results or effects of such delay prevent the
delayed party from performing in accordance with the contract.
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16.  Preparation of Specifications By Persons Other Than City Personnel: No person preparing
specifications for this Request for Qualifications Shall receive any direct or indirect benefit from the use
of these specification.

17.  Public Record: After award of contract, RFQ responses shall be considered public record and subject
to review. If an offeror believes a specific section of its RFQ response is confidential, the offeror shall
mark the page(s) confidential and isolate the pages marked confidential in a specific and clearly labeled
section of its RFQ response. The offeror shall include a written statement as to the basis for
considering the marked pages confidential and the City Procurement Office will review the material and
make a determination.

18.  Conflict of Interest: This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. Section 38.511.
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~ Request for Qualifications
. Special Terms and Conditions

RFQ offers that take exception to Special Terms & Conditions stated within this Request for Qualifications may
cause the RFQ response to be considered as non-responsive. As set forth in this Special Terms and Conditions
section, “vendor” means a person or firm in the business of selling or otherwise providing products, materials or
services and “RFQ offeror” means a vendor making a RFQ offer in response to a Request for Qualifications.
“Contractor” means any person or firm who has a contract with the City. A successful “RFQ offeror” who is
awarded a contract with the City becomes a “contractor”.

1. City Procurement Document: This Request for Qualifications s issued by the City Procurement Office.
No alteration of any portion of this Request for Qualifications document by an offeror is permitted and
any attempt to do so shall result in offeror's RFQ response being considered non-responsive. No
alteration of any portion of a resuitant contract is permitted without the written approval of the City
Procurement Office and any attempt to do so shall be a violation of the contract. Any such action is
subject to the legal and contractual remedies available to the City inclusive of, but not limited to, contract
cancellation, suspension and/or debarment of the contractor.

2. Offer Acceptance Period: To allow for an adequate evaluation, the City requires an offer in response
to this Request for Qualifications to be valid and irrevocable for _90  days after the RFQ opening time
and date.

3. Contract Type: Term with justifiable price adjustment allowed, indefinite quantity.

4. Term of Contract: The term of any resultant contract shall commence on the date of award and shall
continue for a pericd of _12  month(s) thereafter, unless terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise
provided herein. Resultant contract is non-transferable and can not be assigned by the contractor
without the approval of the City Procurement Office, and then only when all prices, discounts, terms and
conditions of the original RFQ documents and contract award remain unchanged.

5. Contract Renewal: The City reserves the right to unilaterally extend the period of any resultant
contract for 90 days beyond the stated expiration date. In addition, by mutual agreement in the form of
a written Contract Modification, any resultant contract may be renewed for supplemental periods of up to
a maximum of _24 _ additional months. The period for any single renewal increment shall be determined
by the City Procurement Office. Such increment shall not be for more than a period of __12 _ months
each, unless the City is eligible to obtain a significant cost and/for supply advantage by a longer contract
renewal period.

6. Cooperative Use of Contract: In addition to the City of Tempe this contract may be extended for use
by other municipalities and government agencies of the State of Arizona. Any such usage by other
municipalities and government agencies must be in accord with the ordinance, charter and/or rules and
regulations of the respective political entity. Any public agencies not identified within this Request for
Qualifications who wish to cooperatively use the contract are subject to the approval of contractor(s).
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10.

Contract Termination: This contract may be terminated without default by either party by providing a
written 30 _ day notice of termination to the other party.

Cancellation for Default: This contract is critical to the City of Tempe and the City reserves the right to
immediately cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the contractor to carry out any
obligation, term, or condition of the contract. The City will issue a written notice of default effective at
once and not deferred by any interval of time. Default shall be for acting or failing to act as in any of the
following:

1. The contractor provides material that does not meet the specifications of the contract;

2. The contractor fails to adequately perform the services set forth in the specifications of the
contract;

3. The contractor fails to complete the work required or furnish the materials required within the
time stipulated in the contract; ‘

4, The contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the contract and/or gives the City
reason to believe that the contractor will not or cannot perform to the requirements of the
contracts.

The City may resort to any single or combination of the following remedies:

1. Cancel any contract:
2. Reserve all rights or claims to damage for breach of any covenants of the contract;
3. Perform any test or analysis on materials for compliance with the specifications of the contract. If

the results of any test or analysis find a material non-compliance with the specifications the actual
expense of testing will be borne by the contractor; .

4, In case of default, the City reserves the right to purchase materials from another source, or to
complete the required work in accordance with the needs of the Gity. The City may recover any
actual excess costs from the contractor by:

A Deduction from an unpaid balance;

B. Collection against the bid and/or performance bond, or;

C Any combination of the above or any other remedies as provided by law.
Contracts Administration: Contractor must notify the City Procurement Office (designated
Procurement Officer Contact) for guidance or direction of matters of contract interpretation or problems
regarding the terms, conditions or scope of this contract.
Responsiveness To Specifications: Performance or feature requirements which are designated as
mandatory or minimums are needed in order to satisfy an identified task or performance need. A

description is given for each designated feature. This description shall be used to determine if offeror's
proposed product(s) and/or service(s) isfare capable of performing the function.
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1l.

12

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

It is recognized that more than one method may be used to accomplish the sought after task
functionality. If the offeror has an altemnate method of performing functional tasks, then such method is
to be listed as an "alternate”, and described in full detail within the written RFQ response. The City shall
be the sole judge as to whether any alternate methodology will be accepted,

"Must", "shall”, "will", “minimum", "required" and/or “mandatory" performance/feature statements must
be met or exceeded by a responsive offeror. Should no offeror be found totally responsive to all
designated Request for Qualifications requirements, the City at its option, may either award the contract
to the most responsive offeror or cancel the Request for Qualifications and issue another Request for
Qualifications for the need under revised specifications.

Multiple Awards: The City has a large number and variety of potential customer departments. In
order to assure that any ensuing contracts will allow the City to fulfill current and future requirements,
the City reserves the right to award contracts to multiple companies. The actual utilization of any
contract will be at the sole discretion of the City. The fact that the City may make muitiple awards should
be taken into consideration by each offeror.

Non-exclusive Contract: Any contract resulting from this Request for Qualifications shall be awarded
with the understanding and agreement that it is for the sole convenience of the City of Tempe. The City
reserves the right to obtain like materials or services from another source to secure significant cost
savings or when timely delivery cannot be met by the contractor.

Billing: Al billing notices shall identify the specific item(s) being billed. Items are to be identified by
name, model number, andfor serial number, as most applicable. Any purchase/delivery order issued by
the requesting department shall refer to the contract number resulting from this Request for
Qualifications. Separate invoices are required on individual contracts or purchase orders. Only invoices
with items resulting from this Request for Qualifications will be accepted for payment.

Licenses: Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits
required for the operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.

Permits: The contractor shall be responsible for obtaining all required permits for installations.

Safety Standards: All items supplied on this contract must comply with the current applicable
Occupational Safety and Health Stendards of the State of Arizona Industrial Commission, the National
Electric Code, and the National Fire Protection Association Standards.

gite Clean-Up: The contractor shall, at the completion of' this contract, remove all debris, unused
materials, apparatus, equipment, etc., and clean up the area leaving the premises cdlean and orderly,
returning to the original conditions.

Infringement of Patent or Copyright: The contractor agrees to save, keep, bear harmiess and fully
indemnify the City and any of its officers and employees from any and all damages, costs, or expenses in
law or equity, that may at any time arise out of or be set up for any infringement of the patent right,
copyright, or trademark of any person or persons in consequences of use by the City, or by any of its
officers, or agents or employees of vendor supplied materials under this bid solicitation and of which the
contractor is not a patentee or signee or lawfully entitied to sell the same.
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Contractor (seller) agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City (buyer) from any and all license,
royalty and proprietary fees or costs, including legal costs, which may arise out of City's (buyer's)
purchase and use of material (equipment/product) supplied by contractor (seller).

It is expressly agreed by contractor (seller) that these covenants are irrevocable and perpetual.

19.  Contractor's(Seller's) Risk: Contractor (sefler) agrees to bear all risk of loss, injury, or destruction of
materials (equipment/products ordered as a result of this Request for Qualifications which occur prior to
delivery to the City; and such loss, injury, or destruction shall not release contractor (seller) from any
obligation hereunder.

20. Insurance: Prior to commencing any work or services under this contract, contractor shall procure and
maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons and damages to
property, which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the
contractor, his agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors.

A Contract Award Notice or Purchase Order will not be issued to an awarded vendor until receipt of all
required insurance documents by the City Procurement Office and such documents must meet all
requirements of this Insurance clause. In addition, before any contract is renewed for additional time
periods, all required insurance must be in force and on file with the City Procurement Office. An awarded
vendor or contractor must submit required insurance within 10 calendar days after request by the City
Procurement Office or the award may be rescinded and another vendor selected for award.

Minimum Limits Of Insurance

Contractor shall maintain limits no less than:

1. Commercial Genera! Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury
and property damage, including coverage for contractual liability (including defense expense
coverage for additional insureds), personal injury, broad form property damage, products,
completed operations, and product liability. The general aggregate limit shall apply separately to
this project/location or the general aggregate shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury and property
damage, including coverage for owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles as applicable.

3. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability: Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability
statutory limits as required by the State of Arizona.

4, Other Insurance: (If applicable, see supplement.)
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Deductibies And Self-Insured Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared and approved by the City. At the option of
the City, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such’ deductibles or self-insured retentions as
respects the City, its officials, employees, and volunteers, or the contractor shall procure a bond
guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claims administration, and defense expenses.

Other Insurance Provisions

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1.

RFQ 08-051

Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverage:

a.

The City, its officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds
as respects; liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the contractor
including the insured's general supervision of the contractor; products and completed
operations of the contractor; premises owned, occupied or used by the contractor, or
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the contractor. The coverage shall
contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the City, its officials,
employees, or volunteers,

The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary as respects the City, its officials,
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the contractor's insurance and shall
not contribute to it. The amount and type of insurance coverage required by this contract
shall not limit the scope of the indemnity provided by this contract.

Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage
provided to the City, its officials, employees, or volunteers.

Coverage shall state that the contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each insured
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the
insurer's liability.

Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage

a. The insurer shall agree to walve all rights of subrogation against the City, its officials,
employees and volunteers for losses arising from work performed by the contractor for
the City.

All Coverages

a. Each insurance policy required by this contract shall be endorsed to state the coverage

shall not be suspended, voided, and/or canceled by either party, reduced in coverage or in
limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City.
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Other Insurance Requirements: Contractor shall:

1. Prior to commencement of services, fumnish the City with certificates of insurance, in form and
with insurers acceptable to the City which shall clearly evidence all insurance required in this
contract and provide that such insurance shall not be canceled, allowed to expire or be materially
reduced in coverage except on 30 days prior written hotice to and approvai by the City, and in
accord with stated insurance requirements of this Request for Qualifications. City shall not be
obligated, however, to review same or to advise contractor of any deficiencies in such policies and
endorsements, and such receipt shail not relieve contractor from, or be deemed waiver of City's
right to insist on, strict fulfillment of contractor's obligations under this contract.

2. Provide certified copies of endorsements and policies if requested by the City in lieu of or in
addition to certificates of insurance.

3. Replace certificates, policies, and endorsements for any such insurance expiting prior to
completion of services,

4. Maintain such insurance from the time services commence unitil services are completed. Should
any required insurance lapse during the contract term, requests for payments originating after
such lapse shall not be processed until the City receives satisfactory evidence of reinstated
coverage as required by this contract, effective as of the lapse date. If insurance is not
reinstated, City may at its sole option, terminate this contract effective on the date of such lapse
of insurance.,

5. Place such insurance with insurers and agents licensed and authorized to do business in Arizona
and having a Best's rating of no less than A-VIL

6. Maintain such coverage continuously throughout the term of this contract and without lapse for a
period of two vears beyond the contract expiration, should any of the required insurance be
provided under a claims-made form, to the extent that should occurrences during the contract
term give rise to the claims made after expiration of the contract, such claims shall be covered by
such claims-made policies. Such extension of coverage shall be evidenced by annual certificates
of insurance.

Subcontractors and Sub-Subcontractors

Contractor shall include all subcontractors and sub-subcontractors as insured under its policies or shail
furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverage for subcontractors
and sub-subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein for the contractor.

Safety

The contractor shall be solely and completely responsible for conditions of the job site, including safety of
all persons (including employees) and property during performance of the work., This requirement shall
apply continuously and not be limited to normal working hours, Safety provisions shall conform to all
applicable federal (including OSHA), state, county, and local laws, ordinances, codes, and reguiations.
Where any of these are in conflict, the more stringent requirement shall be followed. The contractor's
fallure to thoroughly familiarize himself with the aforementioned safety provisions shall not relieve him
from compliance with the obligations set forth therein.
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21.

22.

23.

24.

Notices: All notices, requests, demands, consents, approvals, and other communications which may or
are reguired to be served or given hereunder (for the purposes of this provision collectively called
"Notices™), shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered or sent by registered or certified United States
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the party or parties to receive such notice
as follows:

a. If intended for the City, to:

City of Tempe Procurement Office
Attn: Lisa Goodman

20 E. 6™ Street (Second Floor)

PO Box 5002

Tempe, Arizona 85280

b. If intended for the contractor, to:

The contractor at the contractor's address
and the attention of the person named as
provided in the offer of this contract.

or to such other address as either party may from time to time furnish in writing to the other by notice
hereunder.

RFQ Opening: RFQs shall be opened at the time and place designated on the cover page of this
document. The name of each offeror and the identity of the Request for Qualifications for which the RFQ
was submitted shall be publicly read and recorded in the presence of witnesses. RFQs, modifications and
all other information received in response to this Request shall be shown only to City Personnel having a
legitimate interest in the evaluation. "PRICES SHALL NOT BE READ". After contract award, the RFQs
and the evaluation documentation shall be open for public inspection.

RFQ Evaluation: In competitive Sealed RFQs, awards shall be made to the responsible offeror whose
RFQ is determined in writing to be the most advantageous to the City taking into consideration the
avaluation factors set forth in the Request for Qualifications. The City shall be the sole judge as to the
acceptability of the products and/or services offered.

Discussion with Responsible Offerors and Revisions to RFQ: Discussions may be conducted with
responsible offerors who submit RFQs determined to be reasonably susceptible of being selected for
award. The City may ask to obtain pertinent information for the purpose of clarification to assure full
understanding of, and responsiveness to, the solicitation requirements. Should the City elect to call for
'best and final' offers, offerors shall be accorded fair and equal treatment with respect to any opportunity
for discussion and revision of RFQs, and such revisions may be permitted after submissions and prior to
award for the purpose of obtaining best and final offers. In conducting discussions, there shall be no
disclosure of any information derived from RFQs submitted by competing offerors. The purposes of such
discussions shall be to:

A Determine in greater detail such offeror's qualifications;

B. Explore with the offeror the scope and nature of the project, the offeror's proposed method of
performance, and the relative utility of alternate methods of approach;

C. Deterimine that the offeror will make available the necessary personnel and facilities to perform
within the reguired time; and
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25.

26.

27,

28.

D. Agree upon compensation which is fair and reasonable, taking into account the estimated value of
the required services, and the scope, complexity and nature of such services,

Key Personnel: It is essential that the contractor provide adequate experienced personnel, capable of
and devoted to the successful accomplishment of work fo be performed under this contract, The
contractor must agree to assign specific individuals to the key positions.

A The contractor agrees that, once assigned to work under this contract, key personnel shall not be
removed or replaced without written notice to the City.

B. If key personnel are not available for work under this contract for a continuous period exceeding
30 calendar days, or are expected to devote substantially less effort to the work than initially
anticipated, the contractor shall immediately notify the City, and shall, subject to the concurrence
of the City, replace each person with personnel of substantially equal ability and qualifications.

Confidential Information:

A, If a person befieves that a RFQ offer or specification, contains information that should be
withheld, a statement advising the City Procurement Officer of this fact shalf accompany the
submission and the information shall be so identified wherever it appears.

B. The information identified by the person as confidential shall not be disclosed until the City
Procurement Office makes a written determination or until after award of RFQ.

C. The City Procurement Office shall review the statement and information and shall determine in
writing whether the information shall be withheld. After award of contract, all bid response
information shall be available for public inspection.

32 If the City Procurement Office determines to disclose the information, the offeror shall be
informed in writing of such determination. After award of contract, all RFQ response information
shall be availabie for public inspection.

Payments - After Acceptance of Delivery: the City shall make Payment in full to the successful
contractor within thirty (30) days after receipt and acceptance of delivery. Unless terms other than net
30 days are offered as a discount.

Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall defend, indemnify and
hold harmiess the City, its agents, officer, officials, and employees from and against all claims, damages,
losses and expenses (including but not limited to attorney's fees, court costs, and the costs of appeliate
proceedings), arising out of, or alleged to have resulted from the negligent acts, errors, mistakes,
omissions, work, services, or professional services of the Contractor, its agents, employees, or any other
person {not the City) for whose acls, errors, mistakes, omissions, work, services, or professional services
the Contractor may be legally liable in the performance of this contract. Contractor's duty to hold
harmiess and indemnify the City, its agents, officers, officials and employees shall arise in connection
with any claim for damage, loss or expenses that is attributable to bodily injury, sickness disease, death,
or injury to, impairment, or destruction of any person or property, inciuding loss of use resulting
therefrom, caused by any negligent acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work, services, or professional
services in the performance of this contract by Contractor or any employee of the Contractor, or any
other person (not the City) for whose negligent acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work, or services the
Contractor may be legally fiable. The amount and type of insurance coverage requirement set forth
herein will in no way be construed as limiting the scope of indemnity in this paragraph.
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29.

30.

31.

32

33.

34.

35.

Taxes: Propose all products F.0.B. Tempe, prepaid. Do not include any Sales, Use or Federal Excise
Tax in your RFQ pricing; unless specifically requested on the Price Sheet(s) within the Request for
Qualifications document. The City is exempt from payment of Federal Excise Tax and for RFQ
evaluation purposes will add Sales or Use Tax as applicable. For RFQ evaluation purposes, transaction
(sales) Privilege Tax to be paid (returned) to the City of Tempe, will be considered as a pass-through
cost of Tempe vendors and calculated as a realize net expense of zero (0).

Governor's Air Pollution Emergency Proclamation: In keeping with the governor’s air pollution
emergency proclamation of July 16, 1996, products which are documented and evaluated to have low or
no-content of reactive organic compounds (ozone-producing agents) are sought from this Request for
Qualifications.

Enerqy Efficient Products: The City may consider energy conservation factors including cots in the
evaluation of equipment and product purchases for the purpose of obtaining energy efficient products.
In addition, equipment and product purchases may specify items that have been given an energy
efficient classification by the federal government.

Unauthorized Firearms & Explosives;  No person conducting business on City property is to carry a
firearm or explosive of any type. Any City bidder, contractor or subcontractor is to honor this
requirement at all times and failure to honor this requirement will result in contract cancellation. This
requirement also applies to persons who maintain a concealed weapon's permit. In addition to contract
cancelfation, anyone carrying a firearm or explosive device will be subject to pofice and legal action.

Confined Space Work: The contractor shall comply with alt applicable federal, state, local health and
safety regulations, ordinances, and requirements. In addition, the following requirements are applicable
for City construction projects.

The contractor shall implement a permit-required confined space program as specified under 29 CFR
1910.146 for all work that encompasses a space that 1) is large enough and so configured that an
employee can bodily enter and perform assigned work; 2) has limited or restricted means for entry or
exit (for example, tanks, vessels, silos, storage hins, hoppers, vaults, and pits are spaces that may have
limited means of entry); and 3) is not designed for continuous employee occcupancy.

Conduct and Dress Code; The contractor's employees shall maintain proper conduct at all times while
on City property. Employees shall respect other personnel at the work site. Abusive language, ethnic
and radial siurs, sexual comments and jokes, shouting, and gestures toward other personnel will not be
tolerated. Any occurrence will result in immediate action with possible dismissal of that employee.

Employees will be neatly dressed with badges or uniforms that identify them as employees of the
contractor.

Safety, Health and Sanitation: The contractor shall provide and maintain in a neat, sanitary condition
such facility accommodations for the use by their employees as may be necessary to comply with the
requirements and regulations of the Arizona State Department of Health or as specified by the Maricopa
County Health Department, Sanitary Code.
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36.

37.

38.

39.

The contractor shall be fully responsible for the safety of their employees, the public and property in
connection with the performance of the work covered by this contract. The contractor(s) shall provide all
safeguards, safety devices and protective equipment and be responsible for taking any needed actions to
protect the life and health of their employees and the public during work activity. The contractor(s) shall
also take any necessary actions as directed by the City of Tempe Project Manager to reasonably protect
the life and health of employees on this job and others coming into contact with the job site.

Precaution shall be exercised by the contractor(s) at all times for the protection of persons (including
employees) and property. The contractor shall comply with the provisions of all applicable laws,
pertaining to such protection including alt Federal and State Occupational Safety and Health Acts, and
Standards and Regulations promulgated thereunder.

Protection and Restoration of Property and Landscape: The contractor shall be responsible for all
damage or injury to public or private property of any character, during the prosecution of the work
resulting from any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in its manner or method of executing the work
or at any time due to defective work or materials. The contractor(s) responsibility will not be released
untii the project has been completed and accepted.

If damage is caused by the contractor, the contractor shail restore at no cost to the City of Tempe,
such property to a condition similar or equal to that existing before such damage or injury was done,
by repaiting, rebuilding or otherwise restoring as may be directed, or they shall make good such
damage or injury in an acceptable manner. Further payments will be withheld until the City of Tempe
has inspected the corrected damage or injury and has signed-off the completion and acceptance.

Contractor shall not dump spoils or waste material on private or private public property without first
obtaining from the owner written permission for such dumping.

Responsibility for Work: The contractor shail properly guard, protect, and take every reasonable
precaution necessary against damage or injury to all finished or partially finished work due to weathering
action by the elements or from any other cause, until the entire portion of their respective contract
obligation is completed and accepted by the City of Tempe. The contractor(s) shall rebuild, repair,
restore, and make good all injuries or damages to any portion of the work before final acceptance at no
cost to the City of Tempe. Partial payment for any completed portion of work shall not release the
contractor(s) from such responsibility.

Employees of the Contractor: No one except authorized employees of the Contractor is aliowed on
the premises of the City of Tempe. Contractor employees are NOT to be accompanied in their work area
by acquaintances, family members, assistants, or any other person uniess said person is an authorized
empioyee of the Contractor. Failure of Contractor o meet this requirement will result in permanent
removal of employee performing work at the City of Tempe sites. The Contractor must, however, furnish
the City a current employee register on the issuance of this contract and updated every six -(6) months
thereafter. This register must contain the Name, Social Security Number, Phone Number, and Address.

Sub-Contractor (s): The City of Tempe reserves the right to approve all sub-contractor(s). Contractor
is responsible for all actions of sub-contractor(s). Contractor shall name sub-contractor(s) as additionally
insured, in addition to the City of Tempe on all required insurance documents.
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40.

41,

42.

Safety Apparel Used by Contractor Employees/Staff: Contractor's employees/staff shall be
required to wear safety appare! (i.e., eye, ear, face, protection, etc.) and appropriate clothing like long
pants, long sleeve shirts, when using landscape equipment such as, but not limited to lawnmowers,
blowers, weed wackers, etc. Monitoring of safer work performance will be performed by City staff.

Materials and/or Equipment: Materials and/or equipment, furnished by the City of Tempe will be
delivered or made available to the contractor(s) when necessary. The contractor(s) will be held
responsible for all materials and/or equipment accepted by them and will make good any shortages,
deficiencies or damages that may occur after such acceptance.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise: For this RFP the Gty of Tempe has established that there is no
goal for the utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises owned, operated, and controlled by socially
and economically disadvantaged individuals. Although there was not a DBE goal established for this
contract, it is strongly encouraged that the Contractor use, wherever possible, Disadvantaged Business
Enterprises owned, operated, and controlied by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals.

The City of Tempe extends to each individual, firm, vendor, supplier, contractor, and subcontractor an
equal economic opportunity to compete for City business and strongly encourages, pursuant to
Executive Orders 11625 and 12432 regarding Minority Business Enterprise, and 12138 regarding
Women's Business Enterprise, and reguiations 5.85.36 (€) and of Section 281 of the National Housing
Affordability Act, voluntary use of disadvantaged and/or minority-or women-owned businesses o
reflect both the industry and community ethnic composition.
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Scope

The City of Tempe is issuing this Request for Qualifications to establish a qualified list of Housing Rehabilitation
Contractors for use by the Housing Division. This list will be used for selecting qualified Contractors to perform
all of the services and furnish all of the materials necessary to make improvements to residential properties
identified by the City of Tempe Housing Division. The Request For Qualifications is structured to allow for the
selection of multiple firms to provide cost estimates for required rehabilitation services.

The selection of Contractors for each property shall be from a General Contractor Suggestion List. This list will
be maintained by the Procurement Office. Contractors will be placed on this list by alphabetical order and they
will be rotated on a monthly basis. The rotation will occur by moving the number one Contractor on the list to
the bottom of the list and adjusting the list up one place accordingly. Contractor lists for specific trades used
for emergency rehabilitation will be rotated on a similar basis. An emergency exists when a repair will
immediately impact the safety and wellbeing of the occupants.

Contractors selected for a project must be available to perform the work in a timely manner.

The properties are not owned by the City, but are either owner-occupied or landiord
owned/occupied/unoccupied single-family detached, town home, row house, manufactured, mobile, duplex,
two-family, SRO, or condo unit.

The initial contract period shall be for one-year and may be renewed for additional periods per the Special
Terms and Conditions of this Request for Qualifications.

Contractors shall submit an estimate to the City for each project prior to starting work. This estimate shall
provide the estimated time in hours that the project will require for completion. The Contractor can begin the
project after authorization by the designated City representative. The Contractor shall obtain written approval
from the Project Coordinator at the City if the time and cost to complete the project exceeds the estimate.

In the event that any asbestos, mold, or lead paint is suspected or discovered; contractor shall immediately
notify the City and shall await a decision by the City before proceeding with any portion of the service.

Successful Contractors, when chosen for a project, will be asked to sign the attached contract, Exhibit A.

A Certificate of Insurance is required from Contractor naming the City of Tempe as an additional insured for all
services requested and/or provided. Insurance must be provided to the Procurement Office at the
commencement of contract.

Licensing

All Contractors must have the appropriate Arizona Contractor’s Licenses for each trade for which they submit
an offer. The City requires a firm to have a General Contractor's license. Subcontractors may participate in

the emergency Housing Improvement Program (HIP) and must have the appropriate license for the repair
involved.
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A copy of each license must be submitted with RFQ response.

Workmanship

All work shall be completed in a high quality, workman-like manner as recognized in the trade industry and by
the published Standards of Arizona Registrar of Contractors.

Debarred Contractors

The City will check the Better Business Bureau and Debarred Vendors for all Contractors. Conftractors will be
checked after the RFQ due date and prior to offer review and on an annual basis thereafter. Any Contractors
that appear on either list as debarred or suspended will be removed from the qualified list.

Defects after Completion

The Contractor shall guarantee the work performed for twelve (12) months from the date of final acceptance
of all work required by this contract. Any defects that appear within this twelve (12) month period and arise
out of defective or improper materials or workmanship shall, upon written instruction of the Owner(s), be
corrected and made good by the Contractor at his expense.

Furthermore, the Contractor shall furnish the Owners with all manufacturers’ and suppliers’ written guarantees
and warranties covering materials and equipment furnished under the contract.

Codes

All trades current accepted standards shall be in accordance to the City of Tempe Building Code. All plumbing
shall be in accordance to the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials Uniform Plumbing
Code. Al electrical shall be in accordance with the National Electric Code of the National Fire Protection
Association. All other trades must comply with applicable codes.

Non-Performance

Contractors that are selected for a project and fail to complete the project in a timely manner or refuse
projects repeatedly will be removed from the qualified lists.

Customer Service
It is the City's intent to work with licensed contractors who demonstrate the highest level of customer service
to City staff and Program Participants. Contractors that repeatedly demonstrate poor customer service and/or

have more than one complaint filed with the Registrar of Contractors by a Program Participant may be
removed from the qualified lists. _
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Storage

The Contractor(s) must provide storage facilities, where and when necessary, and exercise such measures as
to ensure the preservation of the quality and fitness of all materials and/or equipment to be used in the work.
Any portion of the right-of-way and easements not required for public travel may be used for storage purposes
when approved by the ordering City department. The Contractor(s) must provide any additional storage area
required.

Materials andfor equipment, furnished by the City of Tempe will be delivered or made available to the
Contractor(s) when necessary. The Contractor(s) will be held responsible for all materials and/or equipment
accepted by them and will make good any shortages, deficiencies or damages which may occur after such
acceptance.

Additional Information:

Process Overview — Reqgular Rehabilitation

1. Rotating contractor list is maintained — names are rotated on a monthly basis.

2. For non-emergency items, the homeowner selects 3 contractors to bid on their project.

3 Contractor walk-through is scheduled with City of Tempe and homeowner. A scope of work is
provided to the contractor so they can bid on the project.

Bids are due within 10 days of the walk-through.

Bid review is conducted — the low bid will prevail unless the homeowner wishes to contribute to the
difference in price.

Selected/non-selected letters are sent to the bidding contractors.

Contract between homeowner and contractor is signed.

“Notice to Proceed” sent to contractor.

Construction commences within 5 days.

Construction should be completed within 60 days.

Contractor payment requests need to be completed for any draws and are contingent upon
satisfactory completion of the work as determined by the homeowner and the City. Terms are net
30.

v s
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Process Overview — Emergency

Contractor list is maintained per trade (HVAC, electrical, plumbing, roofing, etc.).

The contractors are used in order alphabetically.

Contractor walk-through is scheduled with City of Tempe and homeowner. A scope of work is
provided to the contractor so they can bid on the project.

Bids are due immediately. ‘

Selected letter is sent to the contractor.

Contract between homeowner and contractor is signed.

“Notice to Proceed” sent to contractor.

Construction commences immediately.

Construction should be completed immediately.

Contractor payment requests need to be completed for any draws and are contingent upon
satisfactory completion of the work as determined by the homeowner and the City. Terms are net
30.
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City of Tempe Housing Improvement Program

Purpose:

The primary purpose of the City's Housing Improvement Program is to provide a decent, safe and sanitary
home and a suitable living environment for residents, as well as to protect and preserve the integrity and
stability of Tempe neighborhoods.

The Housing Improvement Program provides financial assistance to qualified homeowner to rehabilitate their
owner-occupied homes and is funded by two primary sources: the federal Community Development Block
Grant Program (CDBG) and the federal HOME program.

Eligibility:
To be eligible for the Housing Improvement Program:

« Participant must be a Tempe resident;

+ Participant must have owned and occupied the home to be rehabilitated for at least the immediate
past 6 months;

e Participant’s gross (before taxes) household income must meet the income guidelines; not to exceed
80% of area median income.

« Participant must not have an outstanding loan or fien from the City of Tempe as a result of previous
rehabilitation work on their home.

« The property vaiue of the home to be rehabilitated must not exceed 95% of the yearly-published
HUD/FHA mortgage limits.

s Property taxes must be current to within one year and the mortgage payments must be current 1o
within one month,

The Housing Improvement program provides funds up to a maximum of $50,000 to income qualified
homeowners to correct code violations, deficiencies or other hazardous conditions in the home,

Homeowners may qualify for no-interest deferred loans, low-interest amortized loans or a combination of both.
The type of loan the homeowner receives is based on the homeowner's ability to repay the loan.

In addition, grants (no repayment) are available for up to $7,500 to qualified low to moderate-income
homeowners with household incomes not exceeding 80% of area median income limits, to make emergency
repairs to, or rehabilitate their home, Emergency repairs are those which affect the immediate life, health
and/or safety of the dwellings occupants.

Examples of emergencies include: air-conditioning or evaporative cooler repair, heating repairs, electrical
hazards, leaking roofs, plumbing and/or sewer problems, or anything that may immediately affect the health
or safety of the occupants of the home.

Waiting List and Preferences:

Qualified homeowners for the Housing Improvement Program may be placed on a waiting list according to the
time and date of their pre-application and the preference area they live in. Preference 1 areas will be assisted
before Preference 2 areas. The preference areas are as follows:

Preference #1:

e Westside, census tracts 3188, 3189, 3197.04;

s  Apache Bivd: census tracts 3191, 3192, 3193;

« East Rio Neighborhood: the area inside of census tract 3184 with the following boundaries: north
of Curry, West of Miller, south of Weber and east of Rural.
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Preference #2:
All areas of the City outside of the preference 1 areas listed above.

The following grant program is also available to homeowners in Tempe:

Tempe Home Accessibility Program:
This program is also for homeowners who require accessibility modifications to their home, such as ramps,

widening of doors, grab bars, modifications to showers, sinks, and toilets. Energy conservation improvements
are also eligible expenses.

Loan Repayment:

Under the Housing Improvement Program, all loans are secured with a Deed of Trust and a recorded lien on
the rehabititated property.

Amortized loans will have set repayment schedules. Deferred loans have no set repayments. Both loans must
be repaid immediately if the property is sold, the fitle is transferred or the property is alienated. lLoans may

also be due and payable upon mortgage refinancing during the term of the loan. There are no prepayment
penalties if a loan is repaid prior to the due date.

The City of Tempe has conditions for subordination of liens and the request must be approved by the Tempe
Neighborhood Enhancement Section.

Rehabifitation vs. Remodeling:
It is important to remember that the purpose of the Housing Improvement Program is to assist homeowners

with rehabilitating their home to correct code violations, deficiencies or hazardous conditions. It is not a
remodeling program.
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Specifications

1. Contractor shall provide offers in a format acceptable to the City and services consistent with the
requirements of the City of Tempe's Community Development Department’s “Standards for Rehabilitation,”
most recent revision. These Standards provide information to the homeowners/landlord and Contractors
on how the rehabilitation process flows. Its also provides general information on the programs. Copies
are available at the Neighborhood Enhancement Office.

2. In most cases, a timely response will be expected to provide the services required and alt offers will be
binding on the parties and sub-Contractors providing the services.

3. Contractors, subcontractors and sub-subcontractors shall have and maintain all relevant certifications and
licenses for all services offered throughout the life of the contract.

4, Contractors, subcontractors and sub-subcontractor, and their employees and agents shall have the

qualifications and experience required to perform the work required under this contract in a workman-like
manner and pursuant to industry standards.
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RFQ Questionnaire

Listed below are questions that will be used in the evaluation process. Please answer the questions in detail
and in an orderly fashion,

1.

2.

Provide a summary of your firm’s experience and expertise.

List the trades your firm wants to appear on the qualified list.

Identify the key individuals you would assign to the City of Tempe and briefly describe their

qualifications and experience.

Provide copies of cutrent, valid, State of Arizona Contractors licenses to each trade you are requesting

to be on the qualified list.

List three references with contact name and phone number for each type of work completed in the

past two (2) years.

Company Contact Name

Phone Number

SED- 350~ 8687

Crn/ OF Janps o Lo?&*a

Luire Flowleepnl  Bes lure

PO~ Fblom IHEY
HEO- 3560 807

(7Y oF Z?at;oé‘ Jir_(op)]

Describe the services you will sub-contract.

p\jo NE

Provide evidence of financial stability.
Indicate if your firm performs rehabilitation on mobile homes?

Mm_’f__w Yes . No
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Commonwealth Electric Company
of the Midwest

2601 B, Winsiow Avenus » Fhagnix, Arizona 85040-1681 » (BOZ) 4370384 « Fax: (502) 437-1241
Arizona Cordractors License WNo's:

A 1F OP4Ra3

Lo~ 17 D7T4534

Coot P1RT R

10-16-2007

QUALIFICATIONS QUESTIONAIRE

1) Provide a summary of your firm’s experience and expertise.

a) Commonwealth Electric of the Midwest is a full service electrical company. We
specialize in all facets of the electrical industry. We do heavy industrial, commercial and
residential type work. All of our electricians have completed a four (4) year state
approved apprenticeship program and have years of “Hands On” experience.

2) List the trades your firm wants to appear on the qualified list.
a) Electrical
b) Fire Alarm
¢) Security

3) Identify the key individuals you would assign to the City of Tempe and briefly
describe qualifications and experience.
a) John Mackay, Service Manager, with 37 years of experience (see attached resume).
b) Brad Robertson, Assistant Service Manager, 17 years of experience (see attached
resume).

“Committed to Excellence”
Des Moines * Lincoin * Omaha * Phoenix * Tucson

www.commonwealthelectric.com



John Mackay
3901 East Winslow
Avenue, Phoenix, AZ.
(602) 437-0354 (W)

Professional Experience

2004 - Present Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Phoenix, Arizona
Service Manager

2002 MeBride Electric, Kansas City, MO
| General Manager
1971 - 2001 | J H Mackay Electric Company, Kansas City, MO

Owner/CEQ

Projects Completed, Kansas City, MO
AT&T Town Pavilion

Tower Properties Office Building
Mutual Benefit Life Building

Hallmark Distribution Center

Bartle Hall Convention Center

Jeanne Jugan Nursing Home

Little Sisters of fheﬁggr Nursing Home
SW Bell Toll Building

AT&T Long Line Cedter

NAIC .

Research Hospital

St. Joe Hospital

Liberty Hospital.

St. Luke's Heart Institute

Jackson County Detention Center
Wyandote County Detention Center
Birmingham Waste Water Treatment Plant
Little Blue Waste Water Treatment Plant
87" Street Pump Station

Marriott Downtown Hotel and Banguet Center
Windom Hotel

Claridge Court Nursing Homes

EDUCATION
Arizona State University - Bachelor's Degree, Engineering Science
Block Masters License




Commonwealth Electric Company
of the Midwest -

3901 E. Winslow Avenue » Phoenix, Arizona 85040-1661 » (602) 437-0354 - Fax: {602) 437-1251

Arizona Contractor's License No's:
A - 17 074533
L-11 074534
C~11 119121

Brad Robertson

SKILLS/ABILITIES

Organizational/Management
— Managing alt phases of service department work.
-~ Supervise aH phases of electrical construction projects.
—~ Co-ordinate with general contractor superintendents and project mapagers.
— Technical support of troubleshooting and design modifications of electrical systems,
~ Apply 17+ years of experience to problem solving and project management.
— Design and construction coordination of facilities throughout the Phoenix area.
Technical / Crafts
— NIATC Trained, Local 640 lourneyman, Wireman
— Apprenticeship served at high tech facility with exposure to the broadest level of experiences

- Experienced in the installation of Generators, Transfer switch equipment, Fire alarms systems, UPS -
systems, Monitoring equipment, Network data center equipment, BMS systems, Lighting and motor
control systems.

Communication

_ satisfied and current customers include: City of Tempe, Motorola fire alarm division at Sky Harbor

international airport, Dynergy Arlington generating facility, FAA Tower at Sky Harbor, Realink Data
center. :

WORK HISTORY

Service Tech. / Foreman [ Service Manager May 2003 - Present
Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest

3901 East Winslow

Phoenix AZ 85040

Apprentice wireman / Wireman / Foreman Nov.1994 - March 2003
cannon and Wendt Electric

4020 N 167 ST

Phoenix AZ 85015

EDUCATION

“Commitied to Excellence”
Des Moines + Lincoln » Omaha + Phoenix + Tucson
www.commonwealthelectric.com



——— IMPORTANT NOTICE ———— - THIS IS YOUR IDENTIFICATION CARD

YOU MUST:
1) REPORT DISASSOCIATION OF QUALIFYING PARTY IN WRITING WITHIN 15 DAYS. [SEE ARS. - DO NOT DESTROY
§ 32-1154{A}(18) AND § 32-1151.01} -
2.} REPORT A CHANGE OF ADDRESS IN WRITING WITHIN 30 DAYS. [SEE AR.S. § 32-1122(8){1)] CORP

3} REPORT ANY TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OF 50% OR MORE IMMEDIATELY. (SEE ARS. -

§32-1151.01)
4.) REPORT ANY CHANGE IN LEGAL ENTITY SUCH AS ANY CHANGE IN THE OWNERSHIP OF SOLE I L .

PROPRIETORSHIP OR CHANGE OF A PARTNER IN A PARTNERSHIP OR THE CREATION OF A NEW
CORPORATE ENTITY. {SEE RULE R4-8-110) LICENSE EFFECTIVE THROUGR:
STATE OF ARIZONA JuN 2009

Registrar of Contractors CERTIFIES THAT

« COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC COMPANY
COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC COMPANY OF THE OF THE MIDWEST
MIDWEST CONTRACTORS LICENSE NO, cLass
" 3901 E WINSLOW AVE . ROCO74534 L-11
PHOENIX AZ 85040-1687 ELECTRICAL
,.;. COMMERCIAY, ONLY .

THIS CARD MUST BE § K Kﬂ\b

PRESENTED UFON DEMAND Ve BIRECTOR
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1) REPORT DISASSOCIATION OF QUALIFYING PARTY N WRITING WITHIN 15 DAYS, (SEE ARS. " DO NOT DESTROY
§ 32-1154({A)( 19} AND § 32-1151.01)
2) REPORT A GHANGE OF ADDRESS IN WRITING WITHIN 30 DAYS. [SEE A.R.S. § 32-1122(B)(1)] CORD
33} REPORT ANY TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OF 50% OR MORE IMMEDIATELY. (SEE AR.S, :
§ 32-1151.01) : ‘ :
4) REPORT ANY CHANGE IN LEGAL ENTITY SUCH AS ANY CHANGE INTHEOWNERSHIPOF SOLE - e
PROPRIETORSHIP OR CHANGE OF A PARTNER IN A PARTNERSHIP OR THE CREATION OF ANEW !
COAPORATE ENTITY. (SEE RULE R4-9-110)

DT MU MusT: . | THIS IS YOUR IDENTIFICATION CARD

LICENSE EFFECTIVE THEOUGH:
STATE OF ARIZONA oCcT 2008

Registrar of Contractors GCERTIFIES THAT

COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC COMPANY
OF THE MIDWEST

“
_
_
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“
_
~
COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC COMPANY OF THE |
MIDWEST | CONTRAGTORS LIC: N CLASS

3901 EAST WINSLOW AVENUE o CONTRACTORS LICENSENO. ph0319121 c-11
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PHOENIX AZ 85040 ELECTRICAL

RESIDENTIAL ONLY

THIS CARD MUST m.m § \\ &D\(A@

N
PHESENTED UPON DEMAND ~ ACTING DIRECTOR




DO NOT DESTROY

CORP

1) REPORT DISASSOCIATION OF QUALIFYING PARTY [N WRITING WITHIN 15 DAYS, [SEE AR.S.
§ 32.1154(A){19) AND § 32-1151.01}
2) REPORT A CHANGE OF ADDRESS IN WRITING WITHIN 30 DAYS. [SEE ARS. § 32-1 122(B)(1)
3 REPORT ANY TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OF 50% OR MORE IMMEDIATELY. (SEE ARS.

§ 32-1151.01)
4) REPORT ANY CHANGE IN LEGAL ENTITY SUCH AS ANY CHANGE iN THE OWNERSHIP OF SOLE o o o e i e
PROPRIETORSHIP OR CHANGE OF A PARTNER IN A PARTNERSHIP OR THE CREATION OF A NEW

CORPORATE ENTITY. (SEE RULE R4-9-110)

Mo MuST: | THIS IS YOUR IDENTIFICATION CARD

LICENSE EFFECTWVE THROUGH:
STATE OF ARIZONA

Rengistrar of Conlractol GERTIFIES THAT
O S NEALTH ELECTRIC COMPANY

SEP 2008

COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC COMPANY OF THE OF THE MIDWEST

MIDWEST
3301 E WINSLOW AVE ROC051361 o1

COMMERCIAL ONLY
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PRESENTED UPON DEMAND

i
1
]
I
i
”
i
b
i
“ B-
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RFQ Checklist For Submittals

One signed and complete original of the RFQ response, including "Vendot's RFQ Offer" (Form 201-B).
RFQ Questionnaire has been completed and included.
Any addendum(s) have been included.

Copies of all licenses have been included.
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Evaluation

An evaluation committee composed of City Staff will review the RFQs and score them according to the criteria
listed below. Those offerors receiving the highest scores may be invited to present to the evaluation
committee. An eligibility list of qualified offerors will be determined from the information submitted.

- Award Criteria - P . ‘Weight X - Rating = = Value

1. Experience and Expertise of Firm
2. Key Individuals’ Qualifications and Experience
3. Evidence of Financial Stability

X
X
X -
4, References X

S

Total

This RFQ will be evaluated on a cumulative point system.

Scoring

Qutstanding 7
Good . . . 5
Average . . . 3
Poor . . . . 1
Not Addressed or Unacceptable 0
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* State correct jurisdiction to receive sales tax on the Vendor's Bid Offer, form CS-P201 (B)
included in this Invitation for Bid document.

Less prompt payments discount terms of ___ % ___ days/ or Net _30 _ days. (To apply after receipt and
acceptance of an itemized monthly statement.) For bid evaluation purposes, the City cannot utilize pricing
discounts based upon payments being made in less than 30 days from receipt of statement.

Ordering and Invoice Instructions

In order to facilitate internal control and accounting, each City Department will order and must be invoiced
separately. Monthly invoices must be segregated by City Department number and mailed or delivered directly to
the City Customer Department. For most materials, there will be between three - (3) and six - (6) ordering
departments. At the time an order is placed, the contractor must obtain the ordering department’s cost center
numbers for billing purposes. The use of the department's cost center numbers will be in addition to the
purchase order number. Once a month, the contractor shall submit a consolidated statement which shall itemize
the invoice numbers, invoice date, invoice amounts, and the total amount billed to Accounting. Discount offering
will be based upon days from receipt of the consolidated monthly statement. Invoice(s) shall not show previous
halances.

Invoices shall include:

1, Listing Of All Delivery/Pickup Receipt Numbers Being Invoiced.
2. Total Cost Per item.

3. Applicable Tax.

4. Payment Terms.

5. Blanket Purchase Order Number.

Invoices that do not follow the above minimum invoicing requirements will not be paid. Payment must be
applied to only invoices referenced on check/payment stub. The City reserves the right to bill contracted
vendor for researching invoices that have been paid, but not properly applied by vendor account receivables
office.

Statement mailing address: City of Tempe

Accounting (see below for your contact)
P.O. Box 5002
Tempe, Arizona 85280
Accounting Contacts: Cecilia Miller Letters A-C
Ramona Zapien Letters D-O
Penny Brophy Letters P-Z
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Foram W"g

{Rey, Jenuary 2005

Dagsstinent of thy Yrogsary
edarral ReESnnus Sereine

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

Give form to the
requester, Do not
setd to the IRS.

Tarre

Ruginess name, if diffgrent from above

Ingitwigusl
Check appropriate bo! B Soke proprioiot

Exempl from dackup
El wtbhbolding

%Cmporation D Partnershir D Othuze #
555/ £ Chilsion Al

S, State, ent 2P code
il Azizodn 85040

Lot accounl sumbers e foptional

Reguester s name and addrass (optional)
c:;ly}/ oF [ENPE

o0 E. Srxmt ST o X3 Flooe
TEMPE; Hprzokld 8528)

Print or type
See Specific Instructions on page 2.

d

Taxpayer ldentification Number (TIN)

Souial security nurmber

I T I

Exter your TIN in the apgropriate box, For individuals, this is your social security rumbar (SSH),
Howaever, for a resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded ontity, see the Part § instructions on ] ‘ wl
page 3. For other entithes, it is your emnployer identification numbear EINL # you o not have g number,

see How to get a TIN on page 3.

Note: if the account s in more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for guidetings on whose numier

[0 erer,

ar

Employer identification number

| Tiol7lel8lel2l7

rEsell  Certification

Uhder penalties of peejury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my corrent taxpayer identification number (or | am walting for @ number 10 be issued to me), and

2. {am not suoject 1@ backup withholding because: (a) | am exempt fram backup withhotding, or {b} | have not been nofified by the Intermsl
Revenue Service (RS) that | am subject to backup withholding a3 a result of & faiture to report sl interest or dividends. or {£) the IRS has

notified me that 1 am g oRger sulject 10 backup witbholding, and
3. fam a U.S. person fnciuding a8 U.S. resident afien).

Certification instructions, You must cross out e 2 abague I yow
withralding because you have falted o report all int j
For morigage mierest paid, acquisijon or abandod
arrangement GRA), and genemliy;&ymems oy

provide your correct TN, (Ses th %tr}c}r} /‘7:1 J

aud bapr: notified by the RS thet you are currently subjert 1o backup

i didkiends on your tax retum. For rest estate transactions. lem 2 does nat apply.
: saperty, cancellation of debt. contributions to an indiidusl retrement

' dividends, you are not requited to sign the Centification, but you must

Sign

Signature of
Here

LS. persont W
L

Date # /0/{4/{_’1@07

Purpose of Form

A person who Is required 1o file an/infermation returmn with
the RS, must obtain your correct/taxpayer identification
riumber (TN} io report. for examie, Income paid to you. real
estate transactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition
or abandonment of securad property, canceliation of dsbt, of
contributions you made to an IRA.

U.S. person. Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.5. person
(inchiding & resident alien), to provide your correct TIN 10 1he
person requesting it fthe requester; and, when appficable, to:

1. Certify that the TIN you are glving is correct for you are
waiting for a number to be issued),

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withhatding.
or

3. Claim exemption from backup withhoiding i you ave 3
U.8. exempi payee.

Note: If a requester gives you & form other than Form W-8
to request your TIN, you must use the requester’s form iFitis
substantiafly simifar to this Form W-8.

Foreign person. if you are a foreign person, use the
appropriate Form W-8 (3ee Pub. 515, yyithhotding of Tax on
MNonresident Aliers and Fomsign Entities}

Nonresident alien who i)ece{mes/:; resident alien.
Generally, only & nonresident alien individual may use the
terms of a tax treaty o reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on
rertain types of income, However, most ax reaties contain a
provision known as a "saving clause.” Exceptions specified
in the saving clause may permit an exemption from tax o
continue for certain types of income even after the reciplent
has otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a .S, resident alien who is relying on an
exception cortained in the saving clause of a tax freaty ©
claim an exemption from W.S. tax on certain types of incame,
you must attach a statement that specifies the Tollowing five
items:

1. The treaty country, Generally, this must be the same
treaty under which you ciaimed exemption from tax a5 a
norresidant alien.

2. The treaty atticle addressing the income.

3. The article number {or location) in the fax treaty that
comtains the saving clause and its exceptions,

4, The type and amount of income that qualifies for the
exemplion from Lax,

5. Sufficient facts (o justfy the exemption from tax undes
the terms of the treaty article.

Cat Mo 107313
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Formy W4 (Rev. 1-2003)

Page 2

Exampie. Article 20 of the U.5.-China income lax tresty
allows an exemption from tax for scholarship income
received by a Chinese student temporarily present in the
United States. Under .S, law, this student will become a
rasident alien for tax purposes i his or her stay in the United
Stales axceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of
the first Protocol to the U.%.-China treaty {dated Aprit 30.
1684) aliows the provisions of Article 20 1o continue @ apply
even after the Chinese studemt becomes & resident alien of
the United States. A Chinese student who qualifies for this
exception {under paragraph 2 of the first protocol) and is
relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax on
his or her scholarsiip or feliowship income would attach to
Form W-8 a statement that includes the information
described above to support that exemption,

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity not
subjeet to backup withholding, give the requestar the
appropriate completed Form W-8.

What is backup withholding? Persans making ceflain
paymetits to you must under certain conditions withhoid and
pay 1o the IRS 30% of such payments (29% after December
31, 2003; 2B% after December 31, 2005). This is called
"hackup withholding.” Payments that may be subject to
packup withiolding inciude interast. dividends, broker and
harter exchange tansaclions, rents, royalties, nonemployee
pay, and certatn payments from fishing boat operators. Rea
estate wansaclions are not subject to backup withholding.

You will pot be subject to backup withholding on payments
you receive if you give the requester your cosrect TIN. make
the proper cettifications. and report all your laxable interest
and dividends on your tax retirn,

Payments you receive will be subject 10 backup
withholding if:

1. You do not furnish your TiN 10 the reguester, of

2. You do not certily your TIN when required (see the Part
i instructions on page 4 for details), or

3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an
incorrect T, or

4. The iRS tells you that you are subject 10 backup
withholding because you did not repont all your interest and
dividenciz an your tax return for reporaiie interest and
thividends only, or

5. You do nat certify to the requester that you are notl
subject to backup withholding under 4 above {for reportable
nterest and dividend accounts apenec after 1883 only}.

Cantain payess and payments are exempt from backup
withholding. See the mstructions below and the separate
Instructions for the Requester of Farm W-8,

Penalties

Faifure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your comrect TIN
o a requaster, you are subject 1o a penalty of $50 for each
such fallure unless your failure i5 due to ressonable cause
and not to willful neglect,

Civil penalty for false information with respect to
withholding. If you make a faise staterment with no
reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding, you
are subject to a $500 penalty.

Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willully
falsifying certifications or affirmations may subject you 1o
crimingl penaities including fines and/or imprisonmeant.
Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TiNs in
viglation of Faderal law. the requestar may be subject 1o civil
and criminal penatties.
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Specific Instructions

Name

i you are an individual, you must generally enter the name
showi on your social security card, However, If you have
changed your last name, for instance, due Lo marriage
without infarming the Sociat Security Administration of the
mams change, enter your first name, the tast name showr on
your social security card. and your new last name.

If the account is in joint names, list first, and then circle,
the name of the person of entity whose number you entered
it Part i of the form,

Sole proprietor. Enter your individual name as shown on
yolr social security card on the "Mame” line. You may erter
your business, trade, or "doing business as (DBAY name on
thae "Business narne” line.

Limited liabitity comparny (LLC). if you are & single-member
LLE (including a foreign LLC with 2 domestic ownar} that is
disregarded as an entity separate from its owner under
Treasury reguiations seclion 301.7707-3, emer the ownet's
name on the “Narme” line. Enter the LLCs name on the
YBusiness name” fine.

Other entities. Enter your business name as shown on
required Federal tax documents on the "Name” line, This
name shoulkd match the name shown on the charer or other
fegal document creating the entity. You may enter any
pusiness, trade, or BBA name on the "Business name” fine,

Note: You are requested to check the appropriate box for
your status (individual/scle proprietor. corporation, tc. ).

Exermnpt From Backup Withholding

If you are exemnpt, enter your name as described above and
check the appropriate bax for your status, then check the
"Exempt from backup withholding” box in the line following
the business name. sign and date the form.

Generally, indgividuals (including sole proprietors] are not
exempt from backup withholding. Corporations are exempt
from packup withholding for cerain payments, such as
interest and dividends,

Note: I you are axempt from backup withholding, you shoutd
stilf compiete this form to avoid possible eroneous backup
withholding.

Exempt payees. Backup withholding is not required on any
payments made ta the following payees:

1. An organization exempt from Lex under section 501 {al,
any IRA. or a custodial account under section 403(DN7) if the
account satisfies the requirements of section 0121

2. The United States or any of s agencies or
instrumentalities;

3. A state, the District of Columbiz, a possessioh of the
United States, of any of their politicst subdivisions or
instrurnentalities;

4. A foreign government or any of its polilical subdivisions,
agencies, or instrumeantaities; o

5. An international organization or any of its agencies or
instrumentalities,

Other payses that may ba exempt from backup
withholding inciude:

6. A corporation:

1. A foreign central bank of issue

8. A& dealer in securities or commaodities required Lo register
in the United States. the District of Colimbia, or 2
pnssession of the United States;
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Fage 3

g, A fulures commission merchant registered with the
Commaodity Futures Trading Commission;
10. A real astate investment ust

11. An entity registered at all imes during the tax year
under the investrient Company Act of 1840;

12. A common trust fund operated by & bank under
section 584{a)

13. A financial institution:

14, A middleman known in the imvestment community as a
noninee or custodian: of

15, A trust exempt from tax under section 664 of
described in section 4947,

The chart below shows types of payments that may be
exempt from backup withiiolding. The chart applies o the
exempl recipients listed above, 1 through 15.

H the payment is for . .. THEN the payment is exempt

for ...

irterest snd dividend payments Al exempt reciplents except

for &

Broker ransactions Exempt recipients 1 through 13.
As0, 8 persen registered under
the investment Advisers Act of
1948 who regularly aC15 as a
broker

Bartor cxchange fransactions
and pawonage dividends

Exempt recipioms 1 through §

Paymoenty over S800 reguired
Lo be repurted and direct
sales over $5,000 1

Ganerally, erempt recipients
1 through 77

'ges Form 1089-MISC, Wiscellansous Income, and its insyuctions.

“Howivar, the fodowing payments made 10 2 eorporaticn (ncluding gross
pracseds pait W an aftomney undsr section BOASH. even it the attorney is &
corporation and reportable on Form 1098-IMISC are nol exempt from packup
withokimg: medicnl and ealls care paymamns, atloreys’ fess; st pgaymenis
for seTvices paid by a Fecderal enecative sgeney.
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Part |. Taxpayer ldentification
Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box, If you are a resident
alien dnd you do not have and are not eligible to get an
SBN, your TIN is your IRS individuat taxpayer identification
numbir ((TIND. Enler it in the social security number box. If
you go not have an [TiN, see How to get a2 TIN below,

If you are & sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may
enter either your SSN or Eild. However, the IRS prefers that
you use your SSH.

i you are a single-owner LLC that is disregarded as an
entily separate from it owner (see Limited hability
company (LLC) on page 2), enter your SSN {or EIN. I you
have ona), If the 110 is a corparation, parnership, slc., enter
the entity's EIN.

Note: See the chart on page 4 for further clarification of
name and TIN combinations.

How to get a TIN. If you do nol have a TIN, apply for one
rmmediatety. To apply for an SSH. get Form 85-5,
Application for 2 Social Security Card, from your local Social
Securily Administration office or get this form on-fine at
www.ssa.gov/onlinefsss.htmt You may skso get this form
by calling 1-800-772-1213. Use Form W-7, Application for
RS Individual Taxpayer identification Numbser, 1o apply for an
ITiN, or Form 55-4, Application for Employer identification
Numbear, to apply for an EIN. You ¢an get Forms W-7 and
$5-4 from the IRS by calling 1-800-TAX-FORM
£1-800-829-3678} or from the IRS Web Site at wwwi.irs.gov.

If you are asked to complete Form W-8 but do not have a
Ti. write “Apphied For” in the space for the TIN, sign and
date the farm. and give it to the requester. For interest and
dividend payments, and cerain payments made wilh respect
to readily tradable instruments. genarally you will have 60
days to get a TiN and give It to the requester before you are
subjert to backup withholding or payments. The 60-day rule
dogs not apply to other types of payments. You will be
subject to backup withholding on alt such payments until you
provide your TIN to the requester,

Note: Writing "Applied Eor” nreans that you have already
applied far 4 TIN or that you intend Lo apply for ane soon.
Caution: A disregarded domestic enbity thal has a foreign
owner must use the appropriate Form W-6,
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Part Il. Certification

To establish to the withhaolding agent that you are a U5,
persan, or residert alien. sign Form W-2. You may be
requestadt t sigh by the withhoiding agent even if tems 1, 3,
and 3 below indicate otherwiss.

For a joint account, only the person whose TN is shown i
Part | should sigh {when required). Exempt recipients, see
Exempt from backup withholding on page 2.

Signature requirements, Complete the centfication as
indicated in 1 through 5 below,

1. Interest, dividend, and baner excharnge accounts
opened hefore 1984 and broker accourts considered
active during 1983. You must give your correct TIN, but you
do not have (o sign the cartification.

2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange
accounts opened after 1983 and broker accounts
cotisidered inactive during 1983, You must sign the
certification of backup withholding will apply. If you are
subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing
your correct TN 10 the requesler, you musl cross oul item 2
it the certification before signing the form.

3. Real estate transactions, You must sign the
certification. You may ¢ross out item 2 of the certification.

4, Other payments. You must give your correct TIN, but
your do not have 1o sign the cerification unless you have
besn notified that you have previously given an incorrect TN
"Other payments” include payments made in the course of
the requester's trade or business for rents, royallies, goods
{other than bills for merchandize), medical and hesith care
services (including payments 0 corporalions), payments 10 a
nonemployes for services, payments o certain fishing boat
crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid 1o
attorneys {inchuding payments 10 corporalions).

5. Mortgage intesest paid by you, acquisition or
shandonment of secured property, canceliation of debt,
qualified tuition program payments (under section 528},
IRA or Archer MISA contributions or distributions, and
pension distributions. You must give your correct TIN, but
you da not have 1o sign the certfication.

What Name and Number To Give the
Requester

For this type of account:
1, hwdivichaal

2. Twor or mgre ingivichaols foing
ACCHUNT:

Give nome and S5N of;
| The indivicua!
Tho actuzl owrer of the sccount
or, if combined funds, the first
ingdividiual on the sccount
3. Custadian account of & mingr § The minor ¥
{Uniforem Gift to Minors Act)
4. a. The usial revocable
sgvings wust igrantor i
also gusten)
by, So-catted trust accont
that is ot a logal or walid
frust uncler slate law

5. Sole proprietarship of
single-ogwner LLC
For this type of account:

The grartor-gusies |

Ther actual cwvner °

The owner *

Give name and EIN of

6. Sole proprictorship oy
singie-owner LEC

The owner >

7. A valics trust, estate, or
pension fhast

Leqal entity ¢

8. Corporste or LLO electing
cotporate status on Forem
8537

The corporatinn

9, Auspciation, club, refigious,
charilaple, educational, of
other tax-exgmpt organization

The organization

10. Parthership oF madti-megsmiber

Tha partnership
LG

11. A broker or registered
naminees

The Droker of nomines

12. Accourt with the Department
of Agriculturz in the name of
a pubilic entity {such a5 a
state of local government,
schoo! district. or prison} that
fackives agicultural grogram
peryinents

The public entity

' List first and circte fna neme of the presan wehioge nurmbee po fermish. i only
onE parsen i 8 joint account has s 35N, that person’s numbers must be
furnishied.

Citgle e mingrs rami and furmisk the meinor’s GSM.

o st show your individual narme, Dol y0u May 3%0 &Hor your
Busingss or TTIRAT mame. Yau mey use athar your SEN o BIN (i you P
anc.

*Ligh Best 20 circie 1he nonne of the legal Wusl, asiate, of pansion irast, (Do
ot furmisa the TiK of the parsansl repressatative oF vustse unless the legs
ontay itsell is not designated v the sccount tite )

Note: if no name is circled when more than one name is
fsted, the number will be considered to be that of the first
name fisted,

Privacy Act Notice

Section 6108 of the Internal Ravenus Code requires you to provide your correct TiN to persans who must file informa

tion returns

with the IRS o repornt interest, dividends, and cerain other income pald 1o you. mortgage interest you paid, the acquisition or
abandonment of secured property, canceliation of dett, or contriiutions you made to an IRA or Archier MSA. The IRS uses the
mumbers for identification pUIposes and to hetp verify the accuracy of your tax return. The IRS may also provide this information
to the Department of Justice for civil and criminai itigation, and to cities, states. and the District of Columbia to carry out their

tax laws. We may alse disclose this information 10 other count

Federal nontax criminal aws and to combat terrorism.

ries undar a tax treaty, o to Federat and state agencies o enforce

You must provide your TIN whather or not you are required to file o tax return, Payers miust generally withhold 30% of taxable
interest. dividend, and certain nther paymerts 10 a payee who does not give a TIN to a payer. Cerain penalties may also apply.
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EXHIBIT A
HOUSING IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT

Between Homeowner & Contractor

This AGREEMENT made and entered into this day of , 200 , by and between

Business Name (Contractor) Hereinafter referred to as the CONTRACTOR, and

Homeowner Full Name Hereinafter referred to as the OWNER(S).
WITNESSETH

The OWNER(S) desire(s) to engage the CONTRACTOR to perform certain work on the premises located at:
Street Number and Name Here Tempe, Arizona

The OWNER(S) desire(s) to rehabilitate the aforesaid premises in accordance with the City of Tempe's
Housing Improvement Program.

This Contract is agreed upon in the amount of:

Rehabilitation Amount:
Total Contract Amount:

The parties do mutually agree as follows:

Section 1: Employment of Contractor: The OWNER(S) hereby engage(s) the CONTRACT OR to perform
the services and supply the materials hereinafter set forth. The CONTRACT! OR must be currently licensed,
bonded and insured in the State of Arizona.

Section 2:  Scope of Services: The CONTRACTOR shall perform all of the services and furnish all the
materials necessary to make the improvements described herein for the premises.

Section 3: Improvements: The improvements to be made and/or constructed by the CONTRACTOR are
set forth in the plans and specifications attached hereto and made a part of this AGREEMENT.

Section 4: Time for Performance: The CONTRACTOR shall, within five (5) calendar days from the date of
the Notice to Proceed, begin actual performance, and all work to be performed by the CONTRACTOR shall be
completed within 60 calendar days thereafter.

The CONTRACTOR is excused from the performance time requirement if, during the progress of the work,
delay is authorized in writing by the City of Tempe, delays caused by neglect of the OWNER(S), (for the
purpose of this Contract, the owner must make the premises available during regular Contractor business
hours), or by any separate CONTRACTOR employed by the OWNER(S), or by authorized changes in the work,
or by strikes, lockouts, fire, unusual delay in transportation, unavoidable casualties, or any causes completely
beyond the CONTRACTOR'S control and the time of completion shall be extended for such reasonable time.

Section 5: Subcontracting: The CONTRACTOR agrees that he is fully responsible to the OWNER(S) for the
acts and omissions of his subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them, as he is
for the acts and omissions of himself or persons directly employed by him. Nothing contained in this
Agreement shall create any conttadtual relations betwean any subtoritractor and the OWNERS(Y).
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Section 6: Insurance: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain such insurance to protect OWNER(S) under
Workmen's Compensation acts issued by the Industrial Commission of Arizona and other employee benefits
act, from claims for damages because of bodily injury, including death, and from claims for damages to
property which may arise both out of and during operations under this Contract, whether such operations may
be by himself or by another subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them. Public
liability insurance protecting the OWNER(S) shall be written for not less than $500,000.00. Certficates of
proof of such insurance shall be filed with the City of Tempe.

The CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify and hold harmiess the OWNER(S) and the City of Tempe, from
liability and claim for damages because of bodily injury, death, property damage, sickness, disease, or loss and
expense arising from CONTRACTOR'S operations under this Contract.

Section 7: Changes: All changes, to this Contract, including Change Orders, must be in writing and shall
be signed by the parties to the Contract and approved by the City of Tempe. Both OWNER(S) and
CONTRACTOR agree to refrain from making any other Agreement concerning the listed work or any additional
work during the term of this Contract.

Section 8: Waiver of Lien: The CONTRACTOR shall submit to the City of Tempe a satisfactory Waiver of
all mechanics and material liens and records of expenses including receipts invoices and wage documentation
prior to final payment of the consideration set forth hereafter.

Section 9: Compensation: The CONTRACTOR will be compensated, by the City of Tempe through it's
Housing Improvement Program, for services and materials to be provided herein.

Section 10: Method of Payment: The City of Tempe, together with the OWNER(S), will authorize payment
to the CONTRACTOR in accordance with one of the following schedules to be selected at the discretion of the
City of Tempe:

Schedule A.  Payment in full upon satisfactory completion of the entire work.
Schedule B.  Progress payments based on the compensation stated in Section 9.

Schedule C.  The contractor's proposal will include the number of draw requests and the amount of
each draw. Each draw request must be in equal dollar amounts.

Schedule D. At any point during the course of construction, the City of Tempe shall authorize
progress payments, if the work has been performed in an acceptable manner

Schedule E.  Lien waivers from the contractor and subcontractors will be submitted to the City of
Tempe prior to the last draw.

Section 11: Workmanship: The work provided by the CONTRACTOR shall be performed in a professional
manner; and all materials used in the construction shall be new unless otherwise expressly set forth in the
work write-up.

Section 12: Defects after Completion: The CONTRACTOR shall guarantee the work performed for twelve
(12) months from the date of final acceptance of all work required by this Contract.  Any defects that appear
within this twelve (12) month period and arise out of defective or improper materials or workmanship shall,
upon written instruction of the OWNER(S), be corrected and made good by the CONTRACTOR at his expense.
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Furthermore, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish the OWNER(S) with all manufacturers' and suppliers' written
guarantees and warranties covering materials and equipment furnished under the Contract.

Section 13: Inspection of Work: The City of Tempe shall, at all times, have access to the work. If
specifications, plans instruction, laws, ordinances, building standards, or any public authority requires any

work to be specifically inspected, tested or approved, the CONTRACTOR shall give the City of Tempe timely
notice of its readiness for inspection.

Section_14: Permits and Licenses: All permits and licenses required under this Contract shall be secured by
the CONTRACTOR. Copies of all permits and licenses must be submitted to the City of Tempe Housing
Services Division prior to any compensation for work performed on the property.

Section 15: Equal Employment Opportunity:  During the performance of this Contract, the CONTRACT OR
agrees as follows:

A. The CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, religion, sex, creed, color, disability or national origin.

The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that
employees are treated during employment without any ~ regard to their race, religion, sex,
creed, color, disability or national origin.

Such action shall inciude, but not be limited to, the following: employment,
upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff,
termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for
training or apprenticeship. :

B. The CONTRACTOR will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on
behalf of the CONTRACTOR, state all qualified applicants will receive consideration for
employment without regard to race, refigion, sex, creed, color, disability or national origin.

C. The CONTRACTOR will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts for any
work covered by this CONTRACTOR, so that such provisions will be binding upon each
subcontractor provided that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to CONTRACTS or
subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials.

Section 16: Engineering and Construction Surveys: The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all surveys as required
under this Contract unless otherwise specified.

Section 17: Termination: If the CONTRACTOR fails to complete the project in a professional manner within
the prescribed time frame, or violates any other provisions of this Contract, he may be declared in default.

The OWNER(S) will provide the CONTRACTOR with a two (2) day written notice of default for failure to
comply with his contract obligations. This notice shall contain the reason(s) for the CONTRACTOR default,
and, uniess within forty-eight (48) hours after delivery of said notice, the violations are corrected or
satisfactory arrangements are made for their correction, the CONTRACTOR's right to proceed under the
Contract will be terminated.

In the event the Contract is terminated, the OWNER(S) shall have the right to hire another CONTRACTOR to

complete the project. The cost of having the work compieted shall be deducted from the remaining balance of
this Contract.
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Section 18: The OWNER(S) and the CONTRACTOR acknowledges that they have read, understand, and agree
to all the provisions of this Contract and the attachments thereto.

Section 19:  This Housing Improvement Contract contains the entire agreement between the Owner(s) and
the Contractor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the OWNER(S) and CONTRACTOR have executed this Contract as of the date on Page
one of this Contract.

SIGNATURES:

Homeowner(s):

Homeowner Signature Date
Homeowner Signature Date
Homeowner Signature Date
Withess Date
Contractor:

Contractor Signature Date

Contractor License Number

Witness bate
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Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest

Accountants’ Report and Financial Statements

December 31, 2006 and 2005




Independent Accountants’ Report

Board of Directors
Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Lincoln, Nebraska

We have audited the accompanyirg balance sheets of Comimonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related statements of income, stockholders” equity, and cash
flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest as of December 31, 2006 and
2005, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

BKQ LLR

March 28, 2007

1221 N Sireet, Suite 600 Lincoln, Nebraska 68508-2030 402 473-7600 Fax 402 473-7698
1120 Scuth 101st Street, Suite 410 Cwaha, Nebraska 68124-1088 402 392-1040 Fax 402 3921772
bkd.com Beyond Your Numbers s )
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Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities

OQutstanding checks in excess of bank balance

Current maturities of long-term debt

Note payable to bank

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses
Salaries, wages, bonuses and other compensation
Payroll withholdings, accruals and benefits
Property taxes
Other

Rillings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on
contracts in progress

Total current Habilities
Long-term Debt
Deferred Income Taxes .

Stockholders® Equity
Common stack
Class A voting, $1 par value; authorized, issued and
outstanding 40,000 shares
Class B nonvoting, $1 par value; authorized 30,000 shares,
issued and outstanding 2006 - 12,625 shares,
2005 -« 11,650 shares
Class C nonvoting, $1 par value; authorized, issued and
outstanding 80,000 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total stockholders’ equity

2006 2005

$ 32,187 §$ -

347,222 -

253,370 -
4,971,295 7,028,579
2,185,181 1,351,181
1,634,763 1,459,014
34,896 35,663
250,534 251,105
4,618,679 3,830,002
14,328,127 13,955,544
1,099,534 1,000,694
39,000 61,000
40,000 40,000
12,625 11,650
80,000 80,000
475,250 429,425
6,302,532 5,666,575
(1,526) (11,709)
6,908,881 6,215,941
$ 22375542 $ 21,233,179




Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest

Statements of Income

Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Income From Construction
Construction revenues earned
Cost of construction

Gross Profit

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Employee salaries and services
Space and facilities
Equipment expense
Tools and supplies
Office supplies and records
Travel and postage .
Insurance, taxes and fees
Other

Operating Income
Other Income (Expense)

Interest expense '
Interest and other investment income

Income Before Income Taxes

Provision (Credit) for Income Taxes
Current

Deferred

Net Income

See Notes fo Financial Statements

2006 2005

77,356,855  $ 70,597,202
64,586,657 59,221,058
12,770,198 11,376,144
8,993,813 7,603,054
660,240 690,581
991,860 985,819
216,142 173,545
125,170 149,008
143,331 133,236
398,439 348,050
153,149 179,696
11,682,144 10,262,989
1,088,054 1,113,155
(137,972) (102,478)
45,875 32,110
(92,097) (70,368)
995,957 1,042,787
382,000 472,000
(22,000) (52,000)
360,000 420,000
635957 § 622,787







Accumulated

Other
Class C Common Stock Additional Retained Comprehensive  Comprehensive
Shares Par Value Paid-in Capital Earnings Loss income
80,0060 $ 80,000 $ 383,225 3 5,043,788 % (12,806)
- - - 622,787 - $ 622187
- - - - 1,097 1,097
$ 623,884
- . 46,200 - -
80,000 80,600 429,425 3,666,575 (11,709)
- - - 635,957 - § 635,857
13,183 10,183
. 646140
- - 45,825 - -
80,000 3 80,000 3 475,250 $ 6,302,532 3 (1,526)




Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Operating Activities

Cash received from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Interest and other investment income received
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Investing Activities

Proceeds from sales of property and equipment
Purchases of property and equipment.

Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance
Purchases of certificates of deposit

Net cash used in investing activities
Financing Activities
Increase in outstanding checks in excess of bank balance
Borrowings under line of credit agreement
Payments under line of credit agreement
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Principal payments of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

See Notes o Financial Statements

2006 2005
§ 77219043 § 66,356,966
(77,082,205) (64,117,696)
45,875 32,110
(127,256) (104,759)
(370,821) (442,253)
(315,364) 1,724,368
10,300 45,016
(928,711) (574,367)
(23,586) (15,096)
(37,515) (18,211)
(176,795) -
(1,156,307) (562,658)
32,187 -
30,315,442 22,438,700
(30,062,072) (22,466,995)
782,387 324,020
(336,325) (810,983)
46,800 47,300
778,419 (467,958)
(693,252) 693,752
698,252 4,500
$ 5000 $ 698,252




Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Statements of Cash Fiows - Continued
Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash Provided by
(Used in) Operating Activities
Net income
Ttems not requiring (providing) cash
Depreciation
Provision for losses on accounts recejvable
Deferred income taxes
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Other
Changes in
Refundable income taxes
Contract receivables
Other receivables
Cost and estimated earnings in excess of billings on
contracts in progress
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on
contracts in progress

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

See Nofes fo Financial Statements

2006 2005
$ 635,957 622,787
688,258 715,773
18,137 R,773
(22,000) (52,000)
(8,492) (8,186)
(33,992) (31,174)
11,179 29,747
(1,559,662) (4,899,463)
17,432 (3.471)
597,605 (343.991)
(169,401) 104,698
(230,189) 164,675
(2,057,284) 3,566,008
1,008,411 852,276
788,677 912,916
$  (315364) 1,724,368




Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Notes fo Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest (CECO-MW) is engaged primarily in providing
electrical contracting services in Lincoln and Omaha, Nebraska, Des Moines, Iowa, and Phoenix and
Tucson, Arizona.

The Company primarily grants credit to contractors and suppliers located in the trade areas surrounding
the above locations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, cash equivalents consisted primarily of money market
accounts. At December 31, 2006, the Company’s bank balances exceeded federally insured limits by
approximately $355,000.

Securifies

Equity securities for which the Company has no immediate plan to sell but that may be sold in the future
are classified as available-for-sale securities and carried at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are
recorded, net of related income tax effects, in stockholders’ equity.

Realized gains and losses, based on the specifically identified cost of the security, are included in
operations. :

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are based on amounts billed to customers. The Company provides an allowance for
doubtful accounts, which is based upon a review of outstanding recejvables, historical collection
information and existing economic conditions. Accounts receivable are ordinarily due 30 days after the
issuance of the invoice. Contract retentions are due 30 days after completion of the project and
acceptance by the owner. The Company does not charge inferest on accounts that are unpaid after the
due date. Accounts past due more than 30 days are considered delinquent. Delinquent receivables are
written off based on individual credit evaluation and specific circumstances of the customer.



Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -
Continued

Inveniory Pricing

Inventories, which consist primarily of materials to be used in contract or service work, are priced at the
lower of cost (determined by the first-in, first-out method) or market.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful life of each asset. Accelerated
depreciation methods are used for both financial reporting and tax purposes, except for buildings and
improvements that are depreciated on the straight-line method.

Accounting for Long-Term Construction Contracts

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the percentage-of-compietion method
of accounting and, therefore, take into account the costs, estimated earnings and revenue to date on
contracts not et completed. The amount of revenue recognized is not related to the progress billings to
customers.

For most contracts, the revenues recognized represent that percentage of the total contract amount that a
measurement of units installed to date bears to the total units estimated. Contract costs represent the
percent-of-complete portion of total estimated costs to be incurred over the life of the contract.

Contract costs include all direct labor and benefits, material unique to or installed in the project,
subcontractor cost and indirect cost allocations, including employee benefits and construction equipment
expense. Selling, general and administrative expenses are charged to operations as incurred. Provisions
for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are
determined. Changes in job performance, job conditions, and estimated profitability, including those
arising from contract penalty provisions, and final contract settlements may result in revisions to costs
and income and are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined. The estimated costs
of completion for long-term construction contracts at December 31, 2006, are based on management’s

_estimates. It is at least reasonably possible that in the near term completion costs could be materially
revised.

Costs attributable to contract claims or disputes are carried in the financial statements only when
realization is probable. The amounts are recorded at the lesser of actual costs incurred or the amount
expected to be realized. The amounts related to contract claims carried in the balance sheets as current
assets are expected to be collected within the next operating cycle.



Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -
Continued '

Accounting for Long-Term Construction Contracts - Continued

The current asset, “Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on contracts in progress,”
represents revenues recognized in exoess of amounts billed (underbillings) and the current liability,
“Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on contracts in progress,” represents billings in
excess of revenues recognized (overbillings).

Capital Stock

Shares of Class B and Class C nonvoting common stock are identical in all respects, except for certain
transfer or sale restrictions. Class A common stock has full voting rights.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based upon the difference between the financial
statement and tax bases of assets and labilities as measured by the enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income when these differences reverse. Deferred taxes are the result of changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities. A valuation allowance is established to reduce deferred tax assets if it is more
likely than not that a deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Operating Cycle

Assets and liabilities related to long-term contracts are included in current assets and current liabilities
in the accompanying balance sheets, as they will be liquidated in the normal course of contract
completion, although this may require more than one year.

Self insurance

The Company has elected to self-insure certain costs related to certain non-union employee health and
accident benefit programs. Costs resulting from noninsured losses are charged to income when
incurred. For the employee health and accident benefit program, the Company has purchased insurance
that limits its exposure for individual claims but does not limit its aggregate exposure.

Comprehensive Income or Loss

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included
in net income or loss. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and
losses on available-for-sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the
balance sheet, such items, along with net income or loss, are components of comprehensive income or
loss. Accumulated other comprehensive loss is comprised entirely of net unrealized gains and losses on
available-for-sale securities.



Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 2: Securities

The amortized cost and approximate fair values of available-for-sale securities are as follows:

Gross Gross  Approximate
Amortized Unrealized . Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains l.osses Value
December 31, 2006
Equity securities : $ 486453 S 38377 $__(40.818) $___ 484012
December 31, 2005
Equity securities $._ 462,867 $_...25702 §._ (44436) $__ 444,133

There were no sales of available-for-sale securities during 2006 and 2005.

Certain investments in marketable equity securities are reported in the financial statements at an amount
less than their historical cost. Total fair value of these investments at December 31, 2006 and 2005, was
$257,252 and $231,723, respectively, which is approximately 53% and 52%, respectively, of the
Company’s available-for-sale investment portfolio. These declines primarily resulted from general
market fluctuations and econormic conditions.

Based on evaluation of available evidence, including credit rating information and information obtained
from regulatory filings, management believes the declines in fair value for these securities are

temporary.

Should the impairment of any of these securities become other than temporary, the cost basis of the
security will be reduced and the resulting loss recognized in net income in the period the other-than-
temporary impairment is identified.

The following table shows the Company’s securities’ gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated
by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous
unrealized loss position at December 31:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Approximate Unrealized Approximate Unrealized Approximate Unrealized
2006 Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Temporarily impaired
equity securities $ - $ - $ 257252 §_ (40818) $_257252 3__ (40.818)
2005
Temporarily impaired
equity securities $ - $ - $_231.723 $_.(44436) $_.231.723 §__(44430)
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Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Notes fo Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 3: Contract Receivables

Contract receivables were composed of the following at December 31:

2006 2005

Completed contracts (including retentions of $241,862

and $115,870 at December 31, 2006 and 2005,

respectively) $ 4,431,536 § @ 4,242,481
Uncompleted contracts (including retentions of

$1,455,175 and $2,201,584 at December 31, 2006

and 2003, respectively) 12,357,364 11,008,543
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (51.478) (55.128)

$__16737.422 5__ 15,195,890

Note 4: Benefit Plan

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan for substantially all non-union employees with six months of
service. Employer’s contributions are discretionary (with limitations) and are determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors. Employee contributions through payroll deductions are permitied.
Accrued discretionary employer contributions to the Plan totaled approximately $182,000 and
$145,000, respectively, as of December 31, 2006 and 2005. The Company also sponsors a non-
qualified 401(k) overflow savings plan covering the same eligible employees which permits after-tax
contributions in excess of those as limited under the qualified plan.
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Note 5:

Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Contracts in Progress

Costs incurred to date, estimated earnings and the related progress billings to date on confracts in
progress are as follows:

Total activity
Compileted during 2006

Activity during 2006 on contracts in
progress

Activity in prior years on contracts in
progress and other costs

Contracts in progress

Less progress billings through
December 31, 2006

Total activity
Completed during 2003

Activity during 2005 on contracts in
progress

Activity in prior years on contracts in
progress and other costs

Confracts in progress

Less progress billings through
December 31, 2005

Year Ended December 31, 2006
Revenue Cost of
Earned Construction

Gross
Margin

Contract
Amount

$ 141,141,135 $ 77,356,855 § 64,586,657 § 12,770,198

74.441.892 37.468.067 29.271.034 R,197.033
66,699,243 39,888,788 35,315,623 4,573,165
- 5.960,939 4,927,599 1.033.340
5...66.,699,243 45,849,727 $__40.243.222 5. 5.006505
49.970.669
$_ (4120942
Year Ended December 31, 2005
Contract Revenue Cost of Gross
Amount Earned Construction  Margin

$ 125,377,049 $ 70,597,202 § 59,221,058 B 11,376,144

10.141.963 _ 34441919 27536708 __ 6905211
55035086  36,155283 31684350 4,470,933
) 6,404.949 5.655.798 749,151
5_55235086 42560232 S._31340148 $__ 5220084
45,294,892
$__(2,734,060)
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Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 5: Contracts in Progress - Continued

Included in the accompanying balance sheets at December 31 under the following captions:

2006 2005
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on
contracts in progress $ 497,737 § 1,095,342
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on
contracts in progress (4,618,679} (3.830.002)

$_4.120942y $_ (2,734.660)

Note 6: Notes Payable to Bank

At December 31, 2006, the Company has a $8,000,000 revolving line of credit note payable to a bank,
expiring September 30, 2007. At December 31, 2006, there was $253,370 borrowed against this line.
There were no borrowings against this line at December 31, 2005. Interest is payable monthly and
variable at .50% below the bank’s “Base Rate” (7.75% and 6.75% at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively). The line may be paid down with excess funds in the Company’s depository accounts
through a cash management agreement with the bank. The line is collateralized by substantially all
“non-titled” assets of the Company.

The Company also has available a $1,000,000 “letter of credit” note at December 31, 2006 and 2005
which provides for “normal” letter of credit fees. At December 31, 2006 and 2003, letters of credit of
$589,917 and $547,551, respectively, were issued (but unfunded) against this line. This line expires
September 30, 2007 and is subject to the same terms as the revolving line of credit discussed above.
Any outstanding letters of eredit reduce amounts available under the line of credit.

The debt agreements above contain various covenants including the submission of quarterly and annual
financial information to the lenders, maintenance of minimuim levels of working capital and net worth,
restriction on dividends, as well as maintenance of a minimum “EBITDA Coverage Ratio™.
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Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 7: Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31:

2006 2005

Notes payable to stockholders, without collateral, due
January 2008, with interest payable at rates ranging from _
4,00% to 9.50%. b 932,866 $ 1,000,694

Note payable to bank requiring monthly interest payments
at a variable rate of .25% below the bank’s “Base Rate™
(8.00% and 7.00% at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively). The note is a “revolving reducing” note
which allows for maximum borrowings of $513,890 at
December 31, 2006. The maximum borrowing amount is
reduced by $97,222 quarterly through September 30,
2007 and $55,556 quarterly through final maturity at
September 30, 2008. The note is collateralized by
substantially all “non-titled” assets of the Company. 513.890 -

1,446,756 1,000,694

Less current maturities _ 347.222 -

$___1.099534 §__ 1000694

The “revolving reducing” note payable is subject to the covenants discussed at Note 6.

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2006 are:

2007 $ 347,222
2008 1.099.534
$..1.446.756

Interest payable and expense on the notes to stockholders was approximately $77,000 and $71,000 at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 8: Income Taxes

Income tax expense differs from that computed at the expected federal statutory rates primarily due to
state income taxes, nontaxable life insurance and the nondeductible portion of meals and entertainment
expense.

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) consist of the following at December 31:

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets
Vacation pay accruals $ 53,000 % 53,000
Amortization of noncompete agreement 5,000 6,000
State incentive tax credits - 7,000
Available-for-sale securities 915 7,025
Other 20.000 23,000
78,915 68,025
Valuation allowance - ('7,000)
78,915 91,025
Deferred tax labilities
Revenue and cost recognition on jobs in progress (1,000) (1,060)
Depreciation _ (64.0600) (92.000)
(65.000) (93.000)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) b 13.915 % (1.975)

Included in the accompanying balance sheets as follows at December 31:

2006 2008
Current deferred tax assets b 52,915 § 59,025
Long-term deferred tax liabilities (39.000) (61.000)
h) 13,915 § (1,975

During 2006, the Company utilized approximately $11,000 of Arizona incentive tax credit
carryforwards. No unused credit carryforwards were available as of December 31, 2006.
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Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Notes fo Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 89: Operating Lease Agreements

The Company leases facilities in Lincoln, Omaha and Des Moines and certain construction equipment,
office equipment and vehicles under operating lease agreements which expire on various dates through

2030. Total expense under these and other leases was approximately $351,000 and $355,000 in 2006
and 2005, respectively.

The Company leases the facility in Des Moines from a company owned by the Company’s majority
stockholders under an operating lease agreement that expires in 2010. Total expense under this Jease
was approximately $96,000 in 2006 and $90,000 in 2003.

Management expects, in the normal course of business, to renew or replace these agreements or to
purchase equipment and facilities substantially similar to those currently under the above agreements.

Future minimum lease payments at December 31, 2006 were:

2007 $ 358,413
2008 293,040
2009 241,598
2010 183,830
2011 ‘ 118,520
Thereafter 2.133.084
Future minimum lease payments $_ 3328485

Note 10: Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has a binding stock purchase agreement with the stockholders that provides for various
rights of first refusal, should a stockholder desire to sell his stock or terminate his employment. Also, the
Company is required to purchase stock upon a stockholder’s death based upon an agreed-upon value.
The agreement provides for sale to the Company or the remaining stockholders af the Jesser of the
“Initial Value” (as defined) or at an offered value.

CECQ-MW is party to litigation and claims arising in the normal course of business. Management, after
consultation with legal counsel, believes that the liabilities, if any, arising from such litigation and
claims would not be material to the financial statements.

76



Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 11; Changes in Esfimates

Revisions in estimated contract profits are made in the year in which circumstances requiring the
revisions become known. The effect of changes in the December 31, 2005 estimates of contract profits
was fo increase net income in 2006 by approximately $89,000 from that which would have been
reported had the revised estimates been used as the basis of recognition of contract profits in the
preceding year. The effect of changes in the December 31, 2004 estimates of contract profits was to
increase net income in 2005 by approximately $249,000 from that which would have been reported had
‘the revised estimates been used as the basis of recognition of contract profits in the preceding year.

Note 12: Significant Estimates and Concentrations
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require disclosure of certain

significant estimates and current vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations. Those matters include the
following: ‘

Labor Agreement

Approximately 83% of the Company’s employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements.
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